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STATE OF ILLINQIS ) D Affirm and adopt (no changes) [:] Injured Workers® Benefit Fund (§4(d))
) S8. Affirm with changes l:] Rate Adjustment Fund (§8(g))
COUNTY OF COOK ) D Reverse D Second Injury Fund (§8(e)18)
S D PTD/Fatal denied
D Modify |:| None of the above

BEFORE THE ILLINOIS WORKERS’ COMPENSATION_ COMMISSION

DEAN ROUCHOS, Court Appointed Representative
of Estate of JAMES ROUCHOS, deceased.

Petitioner,
VS. NO: 13 WC 21583
' 20IWCC 0544
- CITY OF CHICAGO,

Respondent.

CORRECTED DECISiON AND OPINION ON REVIEW

Timely Petition for Review havzng been filed by the Respondent herem and notice given
to all pames, the Commission, after considering the issues of medical expenses, causal connection,
temporary total disability and permanent disability, and being advised of the facts and law,
modifies the Decision of the Arbitrator as stated below and otherwise affirms and adopts the
Decision of the Arbitrator, which is attached hereto and made a part hereof.

Permanent Disability -
Section 8.1b(b) of the Illinois Workers’ Compensation Act provides the following:

(b) In determining the level of permanent partial disability, the Commission shall
base its determination on the following factors: (i) the reported level of impairment
pursuant to subsection (a); (ii) the occupation of the injured employee; (iii) the age
of the employee at the time of the injury; (iv) the employee’s future earning
capacity; and (v) evidence of disability corroborated by the treating medical
records. No single enumerated factor shall be the sole determinant of disability. In
determining the level of disability, the relevance and weight of any factors used in
addition to the level of impairment as reported by the physician must be explained
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in a written order, 820 [LCS 305/8.1b

‘The Commission affirms and adopts the Arbitrator’s analysis and consideration of all five
factors pursuant to §8.1b(b) in determining the award of permanent partial disability in this case.
The Commission modifics the Arbitrator’s decision solely with respect to apportioning weight to
the Arbitrator’s §8.1b(b)(v) analysis. After the Arbitrator’s analysis of §8.1b(b)(v), regarding the
evidence of disability corroborated by the treatmg medical records, the Commission inserts one
additional sentence following the last line in subsection (v), the third paragraph on page 13, as
follows: “As Such thzs factor is given sxgmﬁcant we1ght in the permanency determmatlon

Therefore the end of the §8. lb(b)(v) analy31s w;ll read as folIows «“ The Arbltrator also
notes that evidence in the record reflects evidence of other comorbidities, mcludmg cardiac and
low back problems, which may impact his work ablhtles As such, this factor is given mgmﬁcant
weight in the permanency determmatzon : S

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that the Arbitrator's Decision
filed on January 23, 201 8,is hereby modified for the reasons stated herem and othermse affirmed
and adopted -

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that the Petitioner sustained
accidental injuries arising out of and in the course of his employment on April 5, 2013. The
Commission further finds that the Petitioner’s left shoulder condition, which resulted in surgery,
as well as Petltioner s cervical strain mjurles are causally reiated to the April 5, 2013, accident.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent pay to Petitioner
the sum of $910.21 per week for a period of 154 weeks, commencing May 8, 2013, through April
19, 2016, that belng the period of temporary total 1ncapac1ty for work under §8(b) of the Act.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent shall be given a
credit of $24,445.64 for temporary total disability benefits that have been paid. Respondent shall
also be given a credit of $60,728.83 for non-occupational disability benefits that have been paid,
and Respondent shall hold Petitioner harmless from any claims by any providers of the services
for which Respondent is receiving this credit, as provided in §8(j) of the Act.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent pay to Petitioner
the sum of $712.55 per week for a period of 50 weeks, as provided in §8(d)2 of the Act, for the
reason that the injury sustained to the left shoulder caused the loss of use of 10% of the person as
a whole. _

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent pay to Petitioner
the sum of $712.55 per week for a period of 12,5 weeks, as provided in §8(d)2 of the Act, for the
reason that the injury sustained to the cervical spine caused the loss of use of 2.5% of the person
as a whole.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent pay reasonable
and necessary medical expenses contained in Petitioner’s Exhibit 1 in the record of evidence, so
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long as the expenses contained therein are causally related to treatment of the left should er and/or
cervical spine, as provided in §8(a) and §8.2 of the Act. This would also include any expenses
related to pre-operative treatment prior to the December 31, 2015 left shoulder surgery.

ITIS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent shall be given a
credit for any and all awarded medical expenses that have been pald and Respondent shall hold
Petitioner harmless from any claims by any prov1ders of the serv1ees for whlch Respondent is
receiving this credlt as prov1ded in §8(]) of the Aot ' :

ITIS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent pay to Petitioner
interest under §19(n) of the Act, if any

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent shalI have credlt
for all arnounts pald if any, to or on behalf of Petltloner on account of said acmdental injury.

Based upon the named Respondent hereln, no bond is set by the Comnnssmn 820 ILCS
305/19(H(2) (West 2012). The party commencing the proceedings for review in the Circuit Court
shall file with the Commission a Notice of Intent to File for Review in ClI‘Cl.llt Court.

DATED: :NUVI 3 2020 M ,L mmw

KAD/bsd R g _ KathrynA Doernes
0072820 o -
42

Thomas J Tyrrell M

M@l&qw

Maria E. Portela







P au.mms WORKERS' comm—:nsmon comwsswx

- o NOTICE OF ARB!TRATOR DECISION
ROUGHOS, JAMES S Case# 13WC021583
EmpioyeeiPetxﬁaner R :
CITY OF CHICAGO

Empioy;;ReSpondem i . 20 E g%{S@@ 544

On 6/ 1/201 8, an arbltratlon éiecxsmn on ’z’ms case was ﬁle_d wzth the 111111013 Workers Compensatxon o
Comrmsszon in Chlcago, a copy of whach is enclosed .

If the Ccmrmssmn rewews tlns award, mterest of 2. 03% shali accrue ﬁom the date hste& a‘bove to the day

before the date of payment however, if an empioyee 8 appeal resuits in exther no change ora decrease in t}us
award mterest sha.ll not accruc ' :

A copy of tlus demsxon is maﬁed to the followmg parhes

‘2986 PAULACOGHLAN&ASSOC R
15 SPINNING WHEEL RD '
SUITE 100 -7

HINSDALE, i 60821

0010 CITY OF CHICAGO-TORTS DIV
KEVINRED :

30 NLASALLE ST SUITE 800
CHICAGO, IL. 60802
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STATEOFILLINOIS ) . [] In_;ured Workers® Bohefit Fund (§4(a))
TR e .RateAd_]ustmentFund G8ey
COUNTY OF COOK ) ~ { T second Injury Pund (58(e18)

o oo e .Nnneoftheabove

ILL]NOIS WORKERS’ COMPENSATION COMMISSION

| o | ARBI'IRA’I‘IONDECISION I
JAMES ROUCHOS : : Case#13WC21583
EnployPetiione | N O

v | o | Consohdated cases
CITY OF CHICAGO

EmployerfRespondmt

AnAppIzcarzon for Ad;ustment of C’Iazm was ﬁied n th}s matter and a Notwe of Hearmg was nm'led to each party
The matter was heard by the ‘Honorable Paul Celhm Arbxtrator of the Coxmmssmn, in the city of Chlcago on
February 23 2018 and: March 20,2018, Afiér reviewing all of the ewdence presented the Arbltrator he:zeby
makes ﬁndmg,s on the dlsputed 1ssues checked bekaw, and attachcs fhose ﬁndmgs to this document.

'P.

- Diseases ASt? - . _
E] Was there an emp}oyee-engﬂoycr relauonshlp? _ - T :
X D,ld an accﬁeni oceur, that arose. out: of and in, 1he course of Peunoner‘s employmnt by Rﬁspondem‘?
. Whatwasthe date ofﬂ:.e acczdent? e
. Was tmely notxce of the accxdemt gwen 10 Respondent‘? o
I d1s Pctmoner's cuxxent condmon of ﬂl—bemg camaﬂy re]ated to the m_;\n'y‘7
. What were Pemoner s eammgs? I
& What was Pehhomr’s age at the nma of fhﬁ acc1dem'? .
[:] What was, Petlnonﬂr s mamal status at the ttrne of the accxdem? ‘ ' ‘
. Were the medxcal semce weije provxded o Petttzoner reasonable and necessary‘? I—Ias Respondent
paxd all appropmte cha;tg for all reasonable and nccessary medical semces'?
K. Wha’ttemporarybeneﬁts are mdaéputeV R
T v > SR i Mamtenance X TID
L. [_] What is the nature and extent of the injury?
M. [ Should panah:es or fées be lmposed upon Rcspondent'?
N. [[] Is Respondent due any credit? -
0. D Other

j‘ s_.pondent operamg under and sub;ect tc the Illmozs Workers Campensauon or Occupatxona}

&ﬂ_m@rﬂtﬂtjﬂw

JCArbDec 2/10 100 W. Randolph Street #8-200 Chicago, IL 60601 312/814-6611  Toll-free 866/352-3033  Web site: www.iwce. il, gov
Downstate Qﬁ‘ ces; Coflmsviﬂe 61 8/346-3450 Peomz 309/6 71 -30]9 Roc]g"ord 815/987 7292 Sprmgf Teld 217/785-7084
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ENDINGS . - o
On April 5, 201 3, Respondent was operatmg Lmder end subjeot to the prowslons of the Aet

On th:s date, an empioyee employer relauonshxp dld emt between Pehtxoner and Respondent

_On thls date Pet:t::oner dzd sustam an aceldem that arose out of and mthe course of employment

Tmly nonee of thzs accxdent was g:wen to Respondent i

Pentioner’s current eondmon of ﬂl-bemg is causa]ly re]ated o the aee1dent I o

In t‘oe year preeedmg the mjury, Petrnoner earned $70 996 1 2 the average weekly wage was $1 365 31.

Onthe date of acexdent, Pennoner was 59 years of age, smgle thh D dependent children.

Pemoner has recewed all reasonable and necessary medxcal semces

Respondent has not pald all appropnate charges for all reasonable and necessary medical services.

Respondent shall be given a credit of $24 445 64 for TI'D $G ﬁ)r TP}I} $D for mamtenance, and $60 728 83 for
nonoccupatlonal mden:mxty dlsabxhty beneﬁts

Respondent is eni:itled toa credxt for any awarded medwaI expenses paxd by Respondent pursuam to Sechon 8(_]} of the
Act ' o . o

ORDFR

The Arbﬂraior ﬁnds that the Petitioner sustamed aceldental zrnmes ansmg out of and in the course ofhis employmem on
Aprﬁ 5, 2013. The Arbitrator finther finds that the Petettoner s left shoulder condition, whzch resulted in surgery, as well
as Petmoner s oemcal strain mymes, are eausally re!ated to the April 5, 2013 aeexdent

'Respondent shall pay Peeooner temporary total d1sabi]1ty beneﬁts of $910 ZI per week for 154 weeks comnwnemg
May 8 2013 thmugh Apnl 19, 2016 as provxded mSechon 8(1)) of the Aci:.

_ Respondent shall be glven a credxt of $24, 445 64 ﬁ)r term:orary total dzsabilny beneﬁts that have been paid.
Respondent & shall ako be- ngen a credit of $60, 728 83 for non-occdpahoml dasabﬂny benefets that have beenpa1d and

Respondent shall hold petitioner harfriléss fom any claims by any prowders of the semces ﬁ;r which Respondent is
reeemng this credxt, as prov;ded n Secuon 8(3) of tixe Act.

Respondent sball pay reasonable and neeessary medlcal expenses eomamed in Pehtloner s Exln“brt 1 n '.‘he reeord of
ev:denee, s0 long as the expenses contained therem are causally related to treatment of the left shoulder and/or cervical

spine, as provxded n Sections 8(a) and 8.2 of ﬂoe Act. This would also inclode any ex;)enses related to pre-operaﬁve
treatment pnor to the 12!3 1!1 5 left shonlder surgery ; _

Respondent shall be gwen a credit for any and all awarded medleai expenses ﬂlathave been pazd, and Respondent shall

hold Petifioner hanmless from any claims by any providers of the services for which Respondent is receiving this credrt
-as provided in Section 8(j) of the Act.
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W:th regard fo the left shoulder, the Respondent shall pay Petitioner permment partlai dlsabihty beneﬁts of $7 12. 55 per
‘week, the maximum allowable statutory rate, for 50 weeks, because the injuries sustamed caused the loss of use of
10% of the persml asa whole as prowded m Scct:on 8(6)2 of t’ne Ac’c. .‘;

With regard to the cemcal st the Respondem shalt pay Petmoner pemxanem partlal drsabihty beneftts of $712.55
per week, the maximum allowable statutory rate, for 12.5 weeks, because the injuries sustamed caused the Ioss of use
of2.5% of the persan as a whole as prowded n Section 8(d)2 of the Act '

Respondent sbaﬂ pay Peutxoner compensahon that has accrucd from Apnl 19 2016 ﬁarough March 20 2018 and
shall pay the remamder of the awaxd if any, n wee}dy payimnts R o

RULES REGARDING APPEALS: Unless a party fﬁes a Peritzan for Rev:ew wn‘bm 30 days aﬁer rece:pt of thts declsxon,

and perfec’ts a revzew m accordance thh the Act and RUIE‘:S, then th:s dec:smn shalI be entered as tha decxslon of the
Corrmssmn. T . . '

STATWT oF INTEREST RA";:E Ifthe Comasswn reviews thss award mterest at the rate set ﬁ)rth on the Notzce of
Dec:sxon of Arbztmtor sha.ll accrue from the date listed below to the. dayt beﬁ)re the date of payment; however, ifan
enployee's appealresults in eﬂxer no change ot a decrease mtb:s award, mierest sha}lnoi accrue,

St Ma130,2018
Signature of Arbitrator S, jUN 1-_ ZB’a : .- Date -

STATEIV[ENT OF FACTS

The Pe’ﬂuoncr testlﬁed he has workeé for the Respondent for 20 ycats as a ibod service estabhslmcnt inspector, T}:ns
requires ‘him to travel around Chicago mspecmg businesses, generally within one zip ooﬁe ared with some excepuons
He: testxﬁed that he spends his Workdays travehng from business to business for mspecuons other ﬁ}an‘ms Imch period,

and “smpes in and ouf of work at various locations in the assxgned zp code. Pet:honer also holds assocmtes degrees n '
the hospitality and restavrant mdustnes He is right hand domsr;ant

Petitioner testified that he was mvo}ved in a motor ve}ucie accldent on Friday, 4/5/13 at approximately 430 p.m. while
driving his personal 2003 Honda Accord. He had been headmg cast on Chicago Avenue, from near Central Avenue on
his way to the fire station he swipes out at riear Cicero. His shift generally ended at 430. He testified that traffic was
moving slow at approximately 10 miles per hotr before he came to a stop, and that he was redt- ehded while he was
stopped at the hght He was wearing his seatbelt. The aifbag did ot deploy. The Respondent agreed on the record that

the Petitioner was in the course ofhis employment when the accident occurred. Peutxonf:r tesixﬁed he did not report the
accident to the Respondenx that day because no one was present o repoxt it to
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The Petitioner testzﬁed that the driver Who ‘hit him was aohng very erratrca]iy There were pohce in the area who were
present for other reasons. While he and the ofher driver were supposed to go to a nearby police station on Madison,
the other drrver faﬂed to show up. Petrt:oner was able to drive his own car, The police report (Rx6) fiom the acoldent
reflects that it was a hit and run wrth Petitioner being struck mthe reat,: though the other driver’s contact mfomaatzon was
noted. It states that the cars were both traveling eastbound on Chicago Avenue, the Petaironer was coming o a stop,
and the other Velucle struck the Petitioner in the rear. “There was daimiage noted to the rear of Petitioner’s vehroie Both
dnvers had been mstmoted to go to. the 5% pohoe drstrxet statron, but the other dnver never arrived, (Rxé) '

The Pet:troner indicated he drdnt nuualky know he was m3ured and was trymg to get hrs composure ‘out did feel tiff
while at the police station. He testified he fek pain in the lef shoulder and the left nieck areas when he awoke on the
moring of 4/6/13, “Iocabzed inthe shotlder.” He rested and ‘rook pa:rﬂcii!ers Affer itially mdlcatmg he went to the

doctor the day affer the accident on Saturday, he agreed with the medrcal records w}noh mdaoated he mmaﬂy sought
teatment on Sunday, 4f7/‘ 13at the St Ioseph’s emergency room. -

Peﬁtroner testrﬁed he d1d not report the incidert on 4/5/13 beoause it was 1ate i the day and io one was avaﬁable He
indicated that beeause it was right before the weekend; he wantod to see if he would get better. When he didn't, he
reported it to the Respondeni s chief sanitarian, Ms. Castaneda, on the followmg 'I‘uesday or Wednesday inperson at
the office. She provided him with a packet of documentation; mehdmg an accident report, “which he oompieted He
testified he- also “provided Castaneda with the ‘vehicle accident pohee report at ﬁlat time, and ?hat she prowded and
srgned off on an accrdental mjuzy report corrp!eted by Petmoner who afso sigoed xt o

A Crly of Chroago Report of Oceupauonol I:yury report mdroates the Petmoner reported the aomdent to l'ns supervisor,
Arleen Lopez, on 4/6/13, stating he was ori his way to swipe out when he was rear-ended and felt rear npper back and
left shoulder pam T}ns was szgned by the Petrtloner as well as Chref Sanitarian Vn'gima Castaneda on 4/ 1 8/13 (Px9)

At the ER on 4f7/ 13 Peouoner oela’ced 3 consxstent h!story of the ‘car aeczdent two days prior. He mdieated he had no
initial pain but later developed bilateral “strap muscle” and trapezius pain and 'spasm. There was no weakness or tmglmg
Dr. Rothschild noted neck pain and stiffiess, as wel as muscular tenderness. Cervical x-ray reflected spondylitic

changes with a suggestion of bilateral C4/5 foramnal stenosis, ‘possibly ‘at C5/6, with no traumatic changes seen.

. Petitioner was d:agoosed with a cervical sprain status post a motor vehrole accsient prescribed valrum and adwsed fo
fi)}low~up WIth his pmnary care physrc:an (PxZ) e : )

A 4/5/13 note of Dr Lavel], a podramst, noted. that Peﬁtioner was a dmbotro WIth throkened and ﬁrscolored naj]s It

does appear that this may have been a Ietter issued, and not a medrcal vrs1t that oceurred on 4/5!13 the alleged
accrdem date (RxS)

Petmoner tesi:ﬁed he oonmmed to have leﬁ shoulder pain. He saw hrs pmnary care phymoran, Dr. Ahluwalia, on
4/10/13, noting he had only been seeing this provider for a year or so prior to the accident. He could not recall the name
of his prior primary. provider, but agreed his primary care treatment had involved blood pressure and blood thinners,
diabetes and coronary issues. Petitioner testified that Dr, Ahluwalia referred him for therapy, which took p}ace at
Presence St Joseph’s and Pra bram MRI ﬁroughhe testxﬁed thaths bram “wasn t the problem.

On 41 1/13 Petltroner presented to Dr. Ahhlwaha ﬁ)r hls Prot}n‘ombm Tnne~INR study, re!atlve to cardiac issues. He
also reported having been in a car accident, 1ot going to work and wantmg a note to stay home for a fow more days.
He was noted to have lmited range of motion of the atms bilaterally on exam, but no dragnos:s was made relative to
Petitioner’s cervical spine or left shoulder. He was advised to foﬂow up in a week to see how he was {iomg He was

-4
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held off work for three days. (Rx5). On 4/18/13, Petitioner agam appeared for PT~INR Ievels and complamﬁd of neck
- pain and headache since the 4/8/13 accident. Petitioner requested an MRY, and Dr. Ahhmaha referred ‘him for a brain
MRL At that time Dr, Ahluwaha wrote a note for Petitioner, stating that hie was sfill in immenise pain wrthrestncted '

motmn of the neck jomnt n a]l dlrechans, that he had been havmg headaches smce the’ acmdent, and that he had been
advxsed to rest at home xmt:ﬁ ﬁxr’fher nohce (RxS) : :

Thc 4/29/ 13 bramMRI reﬁected no acute cramal abnonnaltty (Px3)

On 4/30/13 Petmoner presented to Samt Ioseph Hospltal for physmal therapy, _wrth fne report mdxcatm.g xi was
pwsuant to the reﬁmal of Dr. Ahluwalia, Petxtsoner nofed he was rear-ended while s}owmg down to stop, and: ﬁrﬂxer
reported that neck and shoulder Ppain | that were fiow constant and worsening in seventy Petitioner reported tn‘xg}mg
the fop of both of hIS shomders when he Iays down at mght Petitioner rated his painan g out of 10, ‘and reported no
pnor neck or. shoulder pain. Upon exaﬁnnatzon, the therapast rioted. PG'{IHOBGI was unable to move his neck enough to
agsess ﬂe)dbilrty, and ‘had Hcreased swe]hng He ’j}mnped” Wiﬂ‘l hght pa’gaauon of 4 any part of his left upper h‘apezms

cemcal mampulatlon aﬁd Ieﬁ-sxled scapular mamplﬂatmn. ’I‘herapy was to be perfbmmd tw:ce weekly ﬁar 3 to 4
weeks (PXB) : . I

Pehtloner testlﬁed that hxs prior attomey )‘hen referred hnn to. I)J: K.ap]an, Whom he saw on 5!8/ 13 Petltxonsr reported
bemg rear-ended byan SUV while weanng a seat bek,: resultmg in njury : o the neck and Ieft trapezms wrthlocalpaxry
swelimg and stiffhess,’ Exam indicated swe]]mg and tenderness, leﬁ greater. than nght, in the posterior cervical-aréa’and
left trapezius nmscles wrth reduced range-of motion. Wxthrespect to'the left: shoulder, Dr. Kaplan noted mild tendemcss
wﬁh reduced rangeA Qf motkon He dmgaosed spram!strams of the left shoulder ‘cervical 8ping : angd’ thoracw paraspmals

wrih Teft trape 218 contusion. Petmoner was prescribed Tramadol and refezred to phymcal ﬂmrapy, as weli as to physmal
medxcmﬂ for ﬁn‘ﬂxer evaluahon. I-Ie a]so was hcld off work (Px?:) - _

Pehtioner followed up thh Dr Kaplan on 5/‘22/ 13 w:th contmued comp}amts of pam at the neck a.nd leﬁ scaplﬂa and
uapezms and ‘only mrinimal mrovement. Therapy and off work were. contnucd for the Icfc shoulder and cervical and

thoracic spine. On 6/8/13, Dr. Kaplan noted Pet:t:oner had some. hmlted mlpmvemcnt Petmoner was prcscﬁbed
Tramadol and Fiexerii and was contnmed oﬂ" worlc (PxB) :

- On 6[ 1/13 Petmoner saw Dr Ahlwvaha thh complamts of Iow back pam, mdxcatmg there are days when he cannot get
up at all, and that he had been unable to control his back pain since an amo acczdent 18 years ago He’ d undergone
ﬂxerapy at that Bme for 5 years thhout mmh nnprovement (RXS)

On 6/25/13 Pet:honer connnued to rcport neck and leﬂ trapezms pam, swelhng, and stiﬁless rad:aﬁng to the left
scapular. He also noted a “remor” in the left arm with shoulder extension. Petitioner indicated only slight improvement.
Therapy was again contmued by Dr. Kaplan along with off work, and Celebrex was an added medication. On 7/17/13,

Petitioner again repcrted shght improvement to Dr. Kaplan. The doctor noted some improvement with range of motion,
as well as less muscle spasms, but that Petitioner continued to have some pain. He was ad\nsed to continue with
therapy, medication . and off work status. On 8/16/13, Petitioner again followed-up with Dr. Kaplan, Téporting contmued
pain and stiffness, along with somewhat.improved pain radiating to the left scapular area. Petitioner réported also
experiencing such radiating pain to the right scapula area. during physical therapy. Petitioner noted unchanged muscle
spastrs and mild left arm tremor with shoulder extension. Dr. Kaplannoted that cervical kyphosis continued, along with
minimal clonic contractions ‘in the led blceps muscle. with left shoulder extension, There was ‘ild- tendemess m the

bﬂateral moracxc paraspinal areas. Petmoner was- gwen a tngger pomt mgecnon and medmatxon, therapy and oif work
status were confimed. (Px3) T R
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' Gn 9/1 0/13 Petmoner fbﬂowed—up wrth Dr. Kaplan with oontmued Tocal pain and suﬂhess ?am radlatmg to the teft
scapular area was somewhat, still occasional radlamg to the ng‘m durmg ﬂlerap.V, and he had mild tremor in the loft frm,
Petitioner declinied an additionial trigger point injection. Dr. Kaplan wanted him to work on reducing kyphosis, in
addiion to the curfent therapy, and that they should work on freeing up Pet:tloner s frozen shoulder. He remained off
work, and dlsabﬂny forms were completed for the Pet:ltloner On 9/24/13 ‘given the Petitioner’s meonged poor

response to conservative &eatment, Dr. Kaplan noted ‘the Petxtxoncr s theraptst recommmied MRI testmg cf the
'cemcal spme and Icft shoulder to see 1f somethmg was bemg rmssed (PXB) ‘

Petitzoner testlﬁed that at ﬂns timc }ms arm wasn’t’ movmg propeﬂy and }us shou}dcr was bem,g addressed He teshﬁed
the tngger pornt m}ec’aons on 8/3/13 prowded only temporaxy rehef -

The R83pondent obtamed a 9/24/13 utd:zatnon review Wlﬂl regard to ongomg physmai therapy, and ﬁmﬁly practxﬁoner ‘
Dr. Jones determined, via ODG gmdelmes for the shoulder, that an addxtmnal 24 sessions of therapy weére not certified.

It was noted that a peer-to-peer review was conducted Wﬁh Dr. Kaplan on 9/23/ i3 Wthh dId nat change Jones demal
of certiﬁcahon. (Px3) S _

A 10/30/13 MRI of the cemcal spine slmwed degeneratwe disc disease from C3 to Cs, most pronotmced at C4/5,
witha disc bulge and bxlateral osteophytes causing severe nemoforammal narrowmg The left sholﬂder MRI peﬂbrmed

that ‘sanie day ‘indicated a possible small partial thickness dastal supraspmatus tear at the mserhon, mild AC Jomt
'osteoarﬂmtlsandnmmmlswacronual/subdeltmdbm‘sms (Px4) B |

On 1 1/6/ 13, ?etmoner was seen ﬁ)r a Sectmn 12 exmmnatxon wrth spme surgeon Dr Smgh at the request of
Respondent. Petitioner reported 8 out of 10 neck pain radlamlg nto the left upper amn, bilateral amm spasms that were
a direct result of the accident, and that he’d had only moderate relief with thzrapy He reportcd bemg able to SIt, stand
or ‘walk for o more than 5 mimies at 4 tie. Dr. Singh rewcwed the 10/23/13 cervical MR, noting it showed mild
C4/5 disc space collapse with mild foraminal stenosis, but did not review the left shoulder MRI He diggnosed the
Petitioner wih a cervical strain and degeneratxve disk disease at C4/5. Dm-mg physxcal exanmatxon, Dr Sigh noted that
the Petitioner was intentionally creating a tremor, noting it was not present ‘with ‘distraction and that there ‘was no
anatomic basis for it. Dr. Singh also opmed that the Petitioner’s pamn complamts were ouf of ‘proportion 1o the
examination ﬁndmgs ‘He opined that the Petitioner’s cmrent symptoms were tot reldted to the accident, as the Petitioner
had only sustained a soft tissue neck strain. He felt that the MRI ﬁndmg.s were mcxﬁental innatire. As the Pefitioner had
undergone over 40 sessions of physical therapy, and his pain complamts were non-atatomic, Dr. Smgh opmed that
Peﬁtmner had reached max::mmmedlcal Jmprovement and was able to returnto work Wﬂh no res(nchons (R.x4)

Pentxoner teshﬁed that Dr Smgh dxd not exanine hlS shmﬂder “The Petmoner testrﬁed that Dr Smgh exammed his neck.
tbr 5 to 10. mmutes but dld not exannne his shoulder as hxs own doctor had

On 11!9/13 Dr. Kapan 1ssued a note conhmnng the Petxtioner off work On1 I/l 9/13 Pahtoner reported only slight
ﬂnprovement since his last visit, and that his Celebrex was discontiriued by “other M.D.” due to risks of bleeding, buthe

was still using Flexeril. Dr. Kaplan reviewed the MRI results and cont:rmed physxcai t‘nerapy, but noted smgery for the
partial rotator cu:!ftear couid not be ruled out in the ﬁxture (Px3) '

Petﬁmner again foiiowed up wﬂh Dr Kap]an on 12/10!13 and 1/11/14 with Pebtxomrs condmon essentlally
unchanged, and medication, therapy and off work status were contimued. He did note that shoulder surgery was
becommg less kely ‘given Petxnoner s rate of improvement, On 1/24/14 Dr Kap]an conbnued the Peimoner oﬁ‘ work,
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notmg he would likeiy be able to refumn to work in May 2014. On 2/1 5/14 Dr. Kaplan noted Petitiorer had ongoing
corrq:vlamts but the neck kyphoms was now, near normal. It was noted that since-the Jast visit the Petitioner had‘
undergone coronary stent placement Meﬁreetxon, therapy and off work were contnmed (Px2)

Kaplan noted rmproved cervrcal range of motion overall, but 1 no srgnrﬁcant rmprovoment in eemeal extensron, I)r
Kaplan advised Petitioner to continue cervical and left shoulder therapy and medication, and contimued off work status.
On 5/17/14,.Dr; Kaplan mdicated minimal ohzmge Petitioner advised that he had a heart ablation procedure sincé his
last vist. The Tast noted visit-with Dr..K apilan was on 7/22/14. Petitionier advised that his therapy. was ongoing including
ultrasomd and electrical stimlation modalities in addition to regular therapy, and that he’d had some: improverdent. He
‘continued to report left ﬁapezrus rzmsole/shorﬂder pain and stifftess with- pain rad:atmg to the left scapular area.
Petitioner’s Jeft. shoulder range ‘of motion ‘was mted to be shgiﬁ:ly rrm}roved -although muscle, spasms contimued, Dr.
Kaplan’s examination was essemally wrehanged since the prior yisit, and Dr. Kaplan conrmued the same treatment plan,
continuing the Petitioner’s.off work: status. The record contains an additional 11/6/14 off work note, mdroamg ﬂns status
from 5/8/14 to present, but there Was no progress note in the record ﬁor thzs date (Px3)

Petrtloner testrﬁed that rotator cuif tear swgery was recommended by Dr.. Kap]an in November 2013 but he didn’t
have surgery initially because he had to find a shoulder:surgeon-who was within his health 1 insurance group. Petxtroner
testified that he did not ongma]ly receive temporary total disabihty (ITD) beneﬁts in this case for three to four months
affer the- accrdent Foﬁowmg his examination with Dr. Smgh, ‘the” Respondent wonki 1ot amhonze frther treahnem
Followmg thzs exam, Petrhoner testrﬁed the Respondent beneﬁts He ‘went onto FMLA leave and had to obtamhrs own

o‘otarn a referral to a sholﬂder speoralxst As thrs process to ok txrne he drdn t return for 1reatmem mtﬁ 8/21/15. Durmg
this interim penod Petitioner indicated his shoulder ﬁmcoon ‘remained abnorimal dnd he had dxﬁcu!ly with rotation,

whloh he. teso’ﬁed is the sarne problem he'd bad ‘with it since the car. aeo:dent. He teshﬁed he had no shoulder problems
bﬂateraﬁy, neck probieme or paln downhls arm prror to the acordent

Tho Petshoner teshﬁed that he ibrmd a new prxmary provrder at thxs pon‘rt, Dr Srddrqm, who reﬁerred hnnto Dr, Fisher,
a cemcal specmhst at IIhno]s Bone & Joint Inshtuto who then reﬁ:rred him 10 Dr. Garehek for the shoulder

On 4/6!15 Pet:txoner underwent hﬁateral shoulder MRIs at the request of Dr Srddrqm On ‘rhe rlght, ﬁtms reﬁeoted a
suspeoted fol. ﬂuokness supraspmatus tear,- The AC joint was moderately arthritic, and there was a type 3 acromion,
both causing impigement. The MRI of the left shoulder was noted to be hrmted due to excessive monon, 50 a repeat
Teft MRI ‘was suggested with sedation. (PxS) At the request of Dr. Slddrqm, Petitioner also underwent EMG testing of

the left upper extremity which showed 1o evidence of radmrlopathy penpheral newopaﬂry, braohral plexopamy or
polynemopaﬁry (Pxo) _ _

On 2/5/15, Dr. Siddiqui held-the Petsﬁoner off work through 5/5/15 On 4/9/ 15, he eontmued the Petrtroner oﬁ" work
agpin through 6/9/15, On 4/27/15, Dr. Siddiqui issued a work note holding Petitioner off work through 8/5/15. (Px7).

'The records (Px6) indicate the Petitioner was a no show to his iitially scheduled visit with Dr. Fisher on 5/13/15. After
rescheduling to 6/22/15, Petitioner again fafled to show up for the visit, as well as on 7/16/15. The 8/21/15 initial report
of spine surgeon Dr. Fisher noted chief complaint of cervicalgia and left shoulder pain following 4 car aceident two years
prior, The symptoms were mild {o moderate, worse with activity. He .denied radicular symptoms, and noted the
shoulder injection he had received provxded no relief, Dr. Fisher noted Petitioner had neck tenderness throughout the
cervical paraspinals, as well as in the left shovilder, lateral stbacrorniat space,.and glenolrumoral Joint anteriorly, There
was limited range of motion. Wrth respect to the bﬁateral upper extremities, Dr Flsher noted a posmve Neer’s and
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Hawkins on the leﬁ, and that Petitioner had difficulty actively forward ﬂexmg or abducnng past 70 degrees Dr Fisher .
reviewed the previous MRI and x-ray results. He obtained new x-rays, with the ¢ervical film§ revealing disc : space
narrowing ‘at C4/5 and C5/6 with loss of normal comcal lordosis.: Left shoulder films showed a slightly high-riding
merus, ‘and no évidence of ﬁ“aeture or tumor. Petmoner was dlagnosed with cervical degenerative disc disease and keft

shoulder internal derapgement,: ost hkely supraspmams totator euﬁ‘ tear. Dr Fisher reoomnended a repeat cemcal
M:RI and foﬁowmp wzth a shoulder sm‘geon (Px6) :

On 9/12/ 15 oemoal MRI Was. a]so noted to be poor due to paﬁent nmvement, but was remarkabie for miId rultilevel
. mid-cervical spondylosis, worst at C4/5 with mild -central and bilateral nemoioralmnal stenosxs CS/ﬁ spondyiosns
; resulted mmﬁd central and nght nemoforamal stemsxs (PXS)

On 11/4/15 I’etmoner ii)}iowed-lqa w1th Dr Fxsher wﬂh ongomg ooxrq)lamts of ieﬁ shoulder pam and neck pam Dr
Fisher noted the cervical MR while having slight motion artifact, indicated no significant central canal stenosis, but disk
space narrowing at C4 to C6 with disk herniations. Given Petitioner’s main complaint ‘was the Jleft shoulder, Dr F mher
agam recommended an updated eft shoulder MRI and foliow—up thh a shoulder specmhst (Px6)

The repeat 1eﬁ shoulder MRl was perﬁrmd onl 1124/ 15, mdmaﬁng a 3 mm parhal t}nckness swraspmtus tear no filll
ﬂuckness tear, and tendmsxs at the s@soaplﬂans mseri:on sxﬁe (PxS)

Petit:loner nneaﬁy saw shoulder surgeon I)r Garelxck on 12/ 1/1 5, He reported biiateral shoxﬂder pam, thhthe 1eﬁ much
worse than the right. Followmg exanmnation and review of the left shoulder MR, Dr. Garehek recommended shoulder
arthrosoopy and acromioplasty, distal clavicle resecnon, biceps tenodesis and, if needed rotator cuff repan' He ﬁrst
requested pre—smgtcal clearance from Petmoner s pnmary care physman and possibly a cardxolog:st. (Px6)

Dr Garehok performed arthroseopm Eefc shoulder surgery on 12/31/15 mvolvmg arthrosco;nc loose body removal-
measixing approxnnately 1.cm in size, subacronzial decompression and distal clavicle resection, as well as openbiceps

tenodesis through & separate incision. The post-operanve dlagnosm was n‘npmgemem' syndxome, AC arthropaﬂay and
biceps tendmtls wﬂlloose body (PxZ) S

Petmoner followed up thh Dr Garelxck on 1/13/16 and he was domg well X»rays of the left shoulder revealed
excellent decompression of the AC joint. Therapy was prescribed, which Petitioner began on 1/21/16. On 2/10/16, Dr.
Ga.rehck advised the Petitioner to work harder on his home exercise regimen. He stated that Petitioner had tiot worked
since 2013 and that his prospects for returning to work were “shm’™, but that he “would not be necessary [sic]
_pareclpatmg n keeping him off work forever”” Dr. Garelick noted that typically patients go back to work with

restrictions by this time, but that Petitioner would be provxded with a few extra weceks of t‘nerapybeﬁ;re bemg released
wmresmet:ons mﬁve weeks (Px6) SR

On 3/16/16 Dr Garekok noted that Petztioner was passwely guardmg on exam “a fair amount” vmh only about 90
degrees of forward elevation and 30 degrees of external rotation. Dr. Garelick released Petitioner to return to work with
no lifting over 10- pounds ard no overhead work with the left upper extremity. Petitioner was advised to follow-up in 5
weeks. Dr. Garelick noted: T was met with a fir amourtt of resistance when I allowed him to return to work. I tried to
explain to him that in all of my patients-that have i mjunes and subsequent surgeries like he has, we will usually allow them
to return to work at six weeks post-op and we-have given him a fow extra weeks to heal Even with this said, T was'met
with a fair arnount of resistance, I firther explained to him I think that return to work fill duty after this type of operation

be somewhere between fom' to. four anﬁ a halfzmntbs post-operahve Uhnnately, I think that he may neceosrtate an
FCE (ﬁmchona! capacity evaluation) to assess for his true abiirtzes » (Px6).
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The Petinoner 3 attomey xe:ferred hnn for an mdcpendem: exammahon wﬂh Dr Gross in January 201 7 wﬁh Pemzoner
indicating- Gross examined him for “a couple howrs” versus-the: 1 0. minutes he testified that Dr. Smgh sperit with him, On
1226117, Peuttoner obtamcd an evaluation with Dr Mlchael Gross “The. hlstory provxded to Dr. Gross was consistent
with what Petitioner. testlﬁed to at trial, namely 'fhat he ﬁalt stﬁ;iess initially after the accident wlnchhe tbought Would 2o
away, but that his nsc,k and shoulder became mcreasmgly pamﬁﬁ s0-he prescnxed 16 the ER. Pemaner reported neck
-stxﬁ‘hcss and leﬁ trapezms pain and stlﬂhess, chck:ng in'his neck: when he: tirns s head since the. acc;dent,fand left arm
pmn, with ude, Petitioner also reported tmg%mg in all ofhis et ﬁngers when holdmg a telephone or: hﬂmg somethmg heavy,
or ‘gt fight, espec:alty when lymg onit, Dr.; Gross’_;_.-?dxagnoses nchuded residals of . cervical! ‘sping injury -and. left
s}mulder supraspinatus tendpn fear. and Teft bmeps._tendon feridonitis.: : He related the left shoulder surgery’ aﬁd tréatment
to the' cemcal 'sping’-as bemg causaliy related- to the- acc1dent of 4/5/13. Dr. Gross also’ apmed that: Petltzoner
- dcnnnstrated zmpamcnt pm‘mlant 10'the; AMA guldelmes as xtrelateﬁ tor the stmu]der injury. of4% ofthe Whole person

(or 7% of the upper extrem:ty), : 8% of the ‘whole person as i related to th :A,ccmcal s;’ma 5t
total of 12% whole person nnpatnmnt (sz) ' S ~

‘Peﬁuoncr testxﬁed he had to s]sep sxﬁmg up for a while foﬂnwmg surgery, and that he mdement physxca! Iherapy I-Ie
tcstsﬁed that nexther his group nor workers® compensatxon insurers would authorm FCE testmg, Peut:oner tas had rio
flrther shoulder treatrnent since this reiease, and rétorned to work on 8/1/16. He testified that the surgery improved his

condmon, though he stiﬁ Tas paln and is not.as active as e, used to be, _mchxdmg gomg to the gymand gardenmg, Ifhe
tries to do too n:mh wtth the: shoulder, it pulls and hurts '

more dﬁcu}tthehas to sametmes' us aladderto get DR TR TR TR TR N T SR T

.On cross exammatxon, Pctxﬁgner tcst;ﬁed that the Respondent ‘Uﬁh?ﬁs an occupanonal health clmlc, MercyWorks but
that:no one sent hini there for. evahxat}on aﬁer Ahis ¥ injury,“When: the czty stopped paymglns duty dlsabilmy/‘ﬁf[) beneﬁts
he - agrecd ‘He obtained- Weckly Tost:time, ‘bengfits through anientm], thongh 'he couldn’t confirm if. they began on
11/12/13 or not, After his release fom Dr. Garelick he was rcmstated back to fill duty n appromnately August 2016,
and he continues to peribnn his regular job as ani mspector He ‘does nothavé to move apphances or.othet teis-at the
inspected facilities in kis job. Petitioner agreed that he was provided and instricted in & home exercisé program while in
physxcal therapy, and whﬂe he tned It, he fe‘n he wasn t sure hc was domgzt mght, but he does do “sorm stretchmg "

: The Respon(ient subrmtted ewdence of ﬁs payments of lost t:me beneﬁts (Rxl) and mdxcal beneﬁts (Rx2) related to
this case. RO SR

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

WITI-I RESPECT TO ISSUE (C DID AN ACC]])ENT OCCUR TI-IAT AROSE OUT OF AN !} IN THE

COURSE OF THE PE’ITI‘IONER’S EMPLOYMENT BY TI-IE RESPONDENT THE ARBI’IRATOR
FINDS AS FOLLOWS _ L _

The Arbztrator ﬁnds ﬂxat the Petmoner has proven, by the preponderame of the ewdenca, that he sustamed accxdental
mjtmes ansmg out of and mthe comse of hlS empioyrmnt on 4/5/ 3 3 : :

'Ihe Peﬁnoner tcshﬁed that I’ns Job mvoived travelmg from p]ace to place by car to perfonn mspectxons of food
establishments in Chicago, generally-within his assigned zip code area. It'is clear to'the Arbﬁxator that {he evﬂence in the
record supports that the Petitioner was a travelmg empioyee He testxﬁed that wh::n he was mvolved in anauto accident
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on 4/5/13 be was on his way to sw1pe out. Thereibre, he remamed in the course of his eogaioymem at the t:me At
“hearing, the Respondent stipulated that the' Petitioner had been in the coursé of his' employment at the time of the

accident, The Petitioner’s testimony and the contemporaneous reoords il ewdence support tha.t he Was stiil workmg and
-lmd not yet swgned out when the aeexient ocemred : _

Wrth regard to the “m ﬂ1e course of ’ element of 1he aecxdent e]mm, the Arbxﬁrator ﬁnds that the Pennoner has proven the
accidental injuries occurred in the course of his employment, both based on an aufo accident: being a cléarly foreséeable -
incident for a traVe}mg employee who has 10, drive from place to place i his job, but also ‘as an‘increased risk over and
above that to which the ‘general public is exposed to given the artiount of driving the Petttloner has to do.each day for
WO, k. 'I‘he Petmoner tesnﬁed that he i Is essent;ally ina vehxele or at a plaee of & mspectxon ﬂlroughom hxs daﬂy sh1ft

-WI’I‘I-I RESPECI‘ TO ISSUE {E), WAS TIMELY NOTXCD OF THE ACCIDENT GIVEN TO THE _
RESPONBENT, THE ARBITRATOR FINDS AS FBLLOWS* :

At the second hearmg date (3!20/ 1 8) in ﬂns blﬁlrcated matter, the Respondent wﬂxdraw thxs asa dmpmed issue. Gwen

the evidence presented in the. Responderit s accident report (Px9), the Peenoner clearly provmied umeiy notice of the
_ aeexdent wﬂm the proscrfbed 45- ﬁay penod of Seetxon 6(0) of the Act

| WITH RESPECT TO ISSUE (). IS THE PETITIONER'S PRESENT C{)NDI’I’ION OF: ILL—BEING
 CAUSALLY RELATED TO THE INJURY, THE ARBITRATOR FINDS AS FGLLQWS‘\ e

'Ihe Pennoner test:ﬁed that he was m:ual}y feelmg stxtf at the pohce stauon aﬁer:ﬂze acc1dem,---and_ﬁlat when he awoke'
the next day he had pain in his Jeft shouldeér and neck. He was mmally dxagnosed at the ER on 4/7/13 with 2 cervical
‘strain, ‘but he also. eomp}amed of trapezius pain and spasm. The accident report of 4/18/13 reflects complaints of neck
and left shoulder pain, and- notes that the. accident and -injury was ‘reported on 4/6/13 10 Ms. Lopez The Respondent

did not preseni any- conﬂlcung testnmny in this regard: When the Petitioner presented for ﬂlerapy at St Joseph’s on
4/30/13 xt was noted ‘rhat be had neek and shoulder pam sirice the accldent PR

While t‘nere are some dlsorepanmes in that the shomder was. not iboused on at fhe ER or the nntiai visit thh Dr.
Ahluwalia on 4/11/13, there is enolgh contemporansous evidence supporting neck and Jeft shoulder. complamts to lead

the Arbitrator to conclude that the preponderance ofthe’ ewdence supports a causal relauonshlp ofthe Pehnoner s mﬁ]ai
neck and leﬁ shoulder cong:lamts 1o ’the 4/5/ 13 accxdent

whﬂe the condxhon was causally related to the accxdent, the causal relauonshtp mhres a eervxeai stram. The Arbxtrator
"‘ﬁnds the 11/6/ 13 opinion 6fDr. Singh'to- be persuasive in terms of the cervical spine, ’{he Arbitrator ﬁnds that the causal

relatlonshlp of the eemeal spine ended as of that date, given ‘the rioted findings and opmzons of Dr. Smgh and ’the fact
that Petmoner had aiready treated seven monﬁls fora cemcal stran :

._WITI:‘{ RESI?EC’I‘ T_O ISSUE Q WERE THE MEDICAL SERVICES ’I‘HA’I‘ WERE I’RGVIDED TO
PETITIONER _RFEASONABLE AND . NECESSARY AND ~HAS -RESPONDENT  PAID  ALL

APPROPRIATE CHARGES FOR ALL REASONABLE AND N NECESSARYMEDICAL SERVICES, THE
ARBITRATOR FINDS ASFOLLOWS: .~ © . .. .

10



‘Roucéas v. City of Cheo, 19 weasss

201iCC0544

Based on the Arbitrator’s above ﬁndmgs the Arbitrator finther ﬁnds that the ?ehttoner is emxtled to the causally related

- medical expenses contained in Petitioner™s Fxhibit 1 ‘pursuant to Sectmns 8(a) and:8.2 of ﬁw Act. This award is limited
to treatment that was directed to and causally related to the cemcal spme ami ieﬁ shoulder, ’Ihls award i also hrnrted as
noted below. The Respondent is entifled to credit for any and all awarded medmal expenses that were paid by
Respondent prior to hearing, either diréctly via workers’ compensaﬁen OF Via:a:group health pIan pursuant.fo Section
8(). The Petitioner has sﬁplﬂated that the Respondent is entitled to credit for group payments per Section 8(1), so long
as The Respondent hekls the Pebtloner saﬂe and ]mmless w:th zegaxd to any such credlted expenses

Notwv.thstandmg the above the Arbnxator demes a}l physxeal therapy expenses memed subsequent to the 9/24/13
- utilization review obtained by Respondent. ’I'hxs detemmamn of the Arbitrator is appheable to therapy for both the
cervical spine and the left shoulder: ‘While the UR opinion was based only on the left sheulder, the fact of the inatter is
that therapy ‘over. ﬁve months at that time had resulted vxrtua]ly no nnprovemem in the. Petxtxoner § subgecﬁve
eomp!amts per the records of Dr Kap]am Burtxessed By the UR report, as well as ﬂme Secnon 12 report of Dr. Singh
on'11/16/13 ﬁudmg the cerweal spine fmjury was nothmg more ﬂlan a Strain, the’ eonnnuafmn oftherapy despﬂe any real
improvement over such a mgmﬁcmit petiod of tune is unreasonable on its face. The Arbﬂrator therefore finds. that the
Respondesit is not hab]e for physmal therapy expenses subsequent to 9/24/13, and is riot etitled to ekperises related to

treatment of the cervical spiné after 11/16/13, including but not Ixmttedto the treamm performed and dlagnostle testmg
obtazned by Dr. Flsher relatxve to the cemcal spme T S o

wm{ RESPECT TO ;SSU_E .. vsm'r AMOUNT OF‘ COMPENSATIGN IS DUE FGR TEMPORARY

TOTAL ‘DISABILITY,  TEMPORARY PARTIAL I}ISABMTY A.ND/OR MAINTENANCELTIE
ARBITRAT()R FINDS AS FOLL{)WS SIS EIEE

Based upon the above ﬁndmgs and other evxdenee, the Arbltrater finds that Petthoner Was tenporarﬂy tota]ly dlsabled
from 5/8/13, when Dr, Kaplan initially took him off work, through 4/19/16. While the Petitioner claims TTD beneﬁts
through 7/31/16, dhe day before. he returned-to work, there is 1o indication that he was either held-off work for this
period of time or that the Respondent did not aceomodate his restrictions prior to 8/1/15. On 3/16/16, Dr. Garelick
indicated that the Petmoner was resistant 10 returning to work, and that he advised the Petitioner he wounld hold him off
work for an additional 5 weeks, at which time he was to follow up. There isno eviderce in the record indicating that the
Petitionsr did; in fact, ﬁ)l!ow up at that ‘tme 'fhere are no teatmem records me\adence wlnch post-date 3/1 6/16

While the Respondent s Sectxon 12 examiner, Dr Smgh, on 11/6/13 determmed that the Petmoner sustamed nethmg
rmote than a cervical strain:and was capable of going back to work, he did not address the Petitioner’s eft shoxﬂder
condition. Thus, while the Arbitrator agrees with Dr, Singh’s determination at that time with regard o the cemcal spine,
off work status after that date remaimed reasonable based- on the left shoulder condition. While there is a gap i
treatrrent following the last visit with Dr. Kaplan in November 2014, the Pefifioner credibly testified- that, based on
Respondent’s denial of firther treatment, he had to work o obtain treatmert after that time through his group health

pln. While this was going on, and. whilethere are no shows indicated with regard to seemg Dr F1sher nnﬁally the
Arbifrator relies on tbe off wozk notes of Dr Slddlqm durmg ’that time penod '

The Arbmator ﬁnds that the Petmoner is entxtled to TTD through the intended fo]low up visit w1th Dr Garelick five
weeks after 3/16/16, which was 4/19/16. No valid explanation was provided as to why the Petitioner did- Tiot retum to
work following Dr. Garelick’s 3/16/16 release until 8/1/16. Respondent shallreceive a credit-for compenisation paid in
the amount of $24,445.64 as well as an 8(j) credit in the amount of $60,728.83 for dlsablhty recéived, however, shall

hold the Petitioner safe and harmless in reference thereto pursuant to the appheable provisions of Section 8(j) of the
Act, :
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WITH RESPECT TO ISSUE {L}, WHAT iS TRE NATURE AN D EXTENT OF 'I'HE lNJURY THE
ARBI'I’RATOR FINDS AS FGLLOWS :

Pursuant to §8 lb of the Act, the foﬂowmg cntena and factors Pt he welghed in detemmmg ﬂxe Tevel of penmnem
partzal disability for acciderttal juries OCCULTing On ot after September 1, 2011: - :

() - A physician fcensed to practice medicine in all of its branches preparmg a permanexxt parnal d:sabil:ty
nnpasrmem report shall report the Jevel of nnpamnt in writing, - The report shall include ‘an evaluation of medically
defined and professionally appropriate measurements of i rmpa:tmem that include, but-are not limited to:10ss of range of
motion; loss of strength, measured atrophy of tissue mass consistent with the injury; and any other measurements that
establish the nature and extent of the impainment. - The most current edition of the American Medical Association’s
(AMA) “Guides to the EVa}uanon of Permanent Impamnt” shall be used by the physxczan n determmmg the 1eve1 of
nnpamnt. s

{b) In deﬁmnmng the levei of pezmanent paxtlai dmabﬂﬂy, The Conxmssmn shall basc its deftermmnon on the
fbllowxng factors;

() the reported 1evel of mpamncni pursuani to subsectxon (a),
- (i) the occupation of the njured emmployes; - -
(i) the £ age | of the emplnyee at the time of the mjury;
(iv) the employee’s fisture ¢ earning capacﬁy, and R
() evidence of disability corroborated by the treaung medmal records No
‘single enutierated factor shall be the sole determinant of dxsabihty Im
detenmnmg the level of "disability, the relevance and weight of any factors

used in addition to the level of i lmpamnt as reported by the physmlan st
be expiamed ina wntten order .

Wxth regard to subsechon (1) of §8 lb(b), the Arbﬁrator notes that the record contams an nnpaxrmcm ratmg of 4% of
the whole person as to the left shoulder, and 8% of the whole person as to the cemcal spine, as determined by Dr.

Gross pursuant to the most current edition of the Ametican Medical Association’s (AMA) Guides to the Evaluation of
Permanent Impairment. The Arbitrator notes that this level of impaiment does not necessarily equate to permanent
partial disabiity under the ‘Workers’ Compensation Act, but instead is a factor 1o be considered in making such a
disability evaluation. In the present case, the Arbitrator finds that this factor provides some weight inthe permanency
deternmlatlon, and notes ‘that the findings of Dr. Gross with regard to the cervical spine appear to involve nerve/cord
comprcssmn and/or radlclﬂopathy which does not appear to have been shovm via the object:ve evidence in this case.

With rcgard to subsectlon (n) of §8 lb(b) the oocupatlon of the errq)byee the ArbItrator notes that the record reveals
that Petitioner was employed as a sanitation food service inspector at the time ofthe accident and had retumed to work -
in his prior capacity for over two years as of the-date of hearing, While he was issued restrictions, and testified 'dxat the
Respordent would not authorize and FCE, the Arbitrator notes it does not appear that any restrictions he has prevents
him from performing his regular job, and that Dr. Garelick’s notes are very.confusing as to work status, as he initialty
questioned Petitioner’s ability to return to work at all before then i issuing farly significant restrictions, but then goes an fo
state that the Petitioner was performing significant guarding and normally should have been returned back to fill duty
work within 5 months or so of the surgery. Overall, on balance, this factor plays a minimal role in the permanency

determination given the Petitioner has returned to his regular ]ob for a significant penod of time with no indication of an
mbﬂxty to pcrform same. _ _
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Wﬁh regard to subsection (iii) of §8. lb(b) the Arbitrator notes that Petmoner was 39 years old at the time of the

accxdent Neither party has submitted evidence in support of the lmpact of the Pefifisner’s age “on his permanent
condition as a result of his work accident. As smh, the Arbltrator gwcs ﬂllS factor no wexght in the permamncy

detennmaﬁou

thh rega:rd to subsec’mn (zv) of §8. 1b(b) Petrtmner ] future eannngs. capacrty, tl}e Arbﬁ:rator notes that no evidence
was presented which indicates that the Pefitioner’s fiture earnings in his current job with Respondent have been
impacted in any way. However, he does have some level of work resmctmns that could frpact his fisture earnings ihe

were to lose his job with Respondent As swh, ’fhc Arbxtrator glves thxs factor mednnn welght in the pennauemy
detemmaﬁon ' _ : : :

With regard to subsecﬁon (v) of §8 lb(b) ewdencc of dlsabxkty eorroborated by the treatlng medxcal xecords the
Arbitrator notes the evidence supports that the Petitioner suffered a cetvical strain supemnposed on what appears to be
a degenerative cemcal condition. He also sustained an injtiry to the 1eﬁ shoulder which ulnmately resulted inaneed for
surgery with Dr. Gare}xck Asto the cemcal spine, there does not appear to have been any 31gn1ﬁcant ongoing sequehae
from the accu:!ent and the Petitioner really did not testify to any 31gmﬁcant ongoing. cervical problems. Petitionier did
report. ongoing problems ‘with the left shoulder, and Dr. Garelick did issue work restrictions. limiting Jeft arm use to 10
pounds of ftifig and no ‘overhead use, However, the doctor also roted Pétitioner’s “resistance” o retuming to work, as
well as somewhat cryptic Ianguage that seems to indicate he. wouid have e:q:ected Petitioner to have no work
resttictions based on the type of surgery he had. Dr. Gross did make some Speciﬁc findings of Petitiorer Jacking a Jevel
of range of motion. Pefitioner is right hand domdinant. The Arbitrator also notes that evidence in the record reflects
ewdence of othex como:bzdrtses, mcludmg card:ac and low back problems, whlch may meact hzs work abﬂmes

Based on the above factors the record taken asa who]e and a rev:ew of pnor Commzssmn awards wxﬂn s:mﬂar m_lmes
stnilar owtcomes, the Arbltrator finds that Petitioner sustained permanent partial disability to the extent 0f2.5% loss of

use of the person as a whole apphcabie to the cervical m;my, and 10% loss of use of the person as a whole applicable
to the left shoulder, pursuant to §8(d)2 of the Act.
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20 TWCC 651
. STATE OF ILLINOIS o ) i BEFORE THE ILLINOIS WORKERS’ COMPENSAT ION
o S)8s . o COMMISSION ' _
.COUNT_Y_ OF COOK ) D ' .
- Richard Muniz; o
- Petitioner,

- 20IWCC 651

o Routine Mamtenance & State Treasurer as :
: Ex Officio Custodian of the Injured Workers Beneﬁt Fund
Respondent ' -

ORDER OF RECALL UNDER SECTION 19( F)

A Motzon to Correct Clerrcal Error pursuant 10 Sectron 19(f) of the Ilhnozs Workers

'Compensatron Act to correct an error in the Decision of the Commission dated November 6, 2020,
having been filed by Petltroner hereln and the Commlsswn havmg consrdered sald Motlon hereby
grants sa}d MOthIl : R :

: IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that the Order dateﬁ November
. 6,2020, s hereby recaIled pursuant to Sectlon I9(f) ' '

- IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that a Corrected Order shall be
ssued srmultaneously W1th thrs Order

DATED: Ngwszazn _. e
DLS/rm ftnad. Ot o

46 . Deborah L. Simpson
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STATE OF ILLINOIS ) ] Affirm and adopt (no changes)
L ' ) SS. D Affirm with changes

IE Injured Workers’ Benefit Fund (§4(d))

D Rate Adjustment Fund (§8(g))
[ Second Injury Fund (5818)

'COUNTY OF COOK )| D reverse
' ' ‘ ' ' D PTD/Fatal denied
% Modify: Up S D None of the above

BEFORE THE ILLINOIS WORKERS COMPENSATION COMMISSION |
RICHARD MUNIZ |
Petmoner
vs. - NO: 10 WC 39469
o - o | 20 IWCC 651

ROUTINE MAINTENANCE & STATE TREASURER AS '
o EX OFFICIO CUSTODIAN OF THE INJURED WORKERS BENEFIT FUND,

- Respondent

CORRECTED DECISION AND OPINION ON REVIEW

T nnely Petltlon for Rev1ew having been filed by both the Respondent Injured Workers
* Benefit Fund (“IWBF”), and Petitioner herein and notice given to all parties, the Commission,
after considering the issues of causal connection, employment relatlonsmp, average weekly

wagefbeneﬁt rate, -temporary total disability/maintenance, penalties & fees, ‘and medical

- ‘expenses ‘both current and prospective, and being advised of the facts and law, modifies the
‘Decision of the Arbitrator as stated below and otherwise affirms and adopts the Decmon of the

o Arbttrator whlch is attached hereto and made a part hereof.

Fmdmgs af Fact T estzmony

S Mr Andrew Ma_]ermk was calIed by Petitioner. He testiﬁed that on November 30, 2007
" he was owner of Respondent, Routine Maintenance. He described the company as “a marketing
¥ eompany” Whlch “secured jobs for contractors, and then they would do the work and give us a

- commission.” It dtd not “have any laborers to speak of.” He knew who Petltloner was but never

' "met hlm
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. The contractors would have the responsrbzhty of completlng the work, recelvmg payment
'from the customer, and remitting the commission to Routine. The commission could either be a
percentage of the contracted amount or a flat fee, depending on the ]Ob He was never on the.

_ jobsite where Petmoner was and he dld not have foremen there He never saw any work being

performed B : L :

Carlos was an empioyee of Routme as ofﬁce manager and was respons.lble for drrectmg _
' 'Petltloner for a certain job, He “oversaw the day—to day office 1nteract10ns, and could be at a
~jobsite." “He would not perform work but “might make like ‘a sales call so ‘to’ speak * The
- contractor. hlmself would oversee the’ partlcuiar jobsite.  He had no idea how the contractors got
“themselves to the }obsﬁcs ‘The contractors used their own ladders on the jobs. He was shown a -
purported mdependent contractor contract between Routine and Petltroner Carlos is the named
contractor and Petmoner is the named “contractee 7 Mr Maj ermk never saw Petltloner work

. On cross exammatlon Mr Majermk testlﬁed he found _]ObS and contractors mamly _
- from “telemarketmg » He also.did some newspaper ads, fliers, and referral business. They
‘would give contractor _‘jObS in exchange for a commission.. The contractors were never on

. Routine’s payroll, and did not wear - uniforms. - Routine found customers  who wanted: work

_ performed and contractors to perform the work. He rerterated his testrmony that Routine did not
e 'provrde transportatron or equlpment to the contractors Routme never 1ssues W-2s . :

In 2007 Routlne had less than 10 employecs Routme used the same mdependent' e

contractor contracts for all contractors:  Routine never: provided- Workers™: ‘Compensation

insurance to contractors. Mr. Majernik | testrﬁed that he did not know whether Routme provrded
such insurance for its employees but “apparently not ” : :

On redlrect exammation Mr Ma_;ermk testrﬁcd he had no recollectron of meetmg or
hrnng Petitioner or of the job he was working on, He had no knowledge on how his work was
supervrsed He had no idea how any of the workers were supervised on that jobsite, how they
came to the worksrte, or what tools were used. He could not testlfy whether Carlos was at the
-Jobszte _

On re-cross examination, Mr. Majemlk testified that Routine never prowded
transportation for contractors, and was not at the jobsite Petitioner worked at in 2007. Upon
questioning by the Arbitrator, Mr. Majemik testified that he “inherited” contractors for jobs
when he took over the company. Otherwise he would find contractors the same way he found
custemners. :

Petitioner testified that on November 30, 2007 he was employed by Routine. He has
specific recollections of that day and his employments status at that time. Routine hired him to
clean gutters. He was hired pursuant to an ad in the paper. He answered the ad and spoke to
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_ Carlos who hired him in Routine’s ofﬁce He understood that he was being hir_ed to clean
' gutters at aresulenhal complex ' . ' U T

. Petltloner used hlS own veh1cle and ladder for small homes but Routme prov1ded
' ladders if his did not 0] high enough. He worked for Routine for three days before the accident.
He 31gned an apphcatlon with Routine on November 27, 2007. He did not recall anything else
“he signed. But if he were presented with a document to sign he would have. He understood that
if he refused to sign anythmg, he ‘would not be allowed to work. ~Petitioner had not ‘worked -

- previously cleamng gutters. He was a union bncklayer, was laid off, and needed extra ‘money for

~the holidays. Routine would set the rate of pay for a job and pay him after the _]Ob was complete '
He recelved checks from Routme He eamed a t‘otal of $60() for the three days he worked '

: By On the day of the acc1dent he met the crew at Respondent $ ofﬁce T hey 1oaded up the "
company ‘truck, rented. ladders from a hardware store, and went to the _)obsﬁe Carlos drove the

© company truck, was the supervisor of the crew, and was going to tell them what to do when they |
- . .got to the Jobsxte Carlos instructed them to open the ladder and go up and clean the gutters. The
... weather was “cold and windy.” Carlos directed them to proceed with the work and the order of

= the buﬂdmgs to . work on.. ‘Respondent collected the money and paxd the crew Respondent chose _

: -"the worksdes and Petztloner never prev;ously cleaned gutters

o Pet1t1oner was comlng down the ladder A gust of wmd caught hlm in the back The _ '
L -'person who was supposed to stéady the ladder was not there. “Petitioner felt the ladder slip on the
gutter. Petmoner jumped off the ladder and caught the balcony w1th his armpits. He could not -
~ keep: hold of the. balcony and fell to the ground from about 30 feet. Carlos witnessed the .
accident. - He felt agonizing pain in his Tegs (he fractured-his pelvis in three places) in his
- shoulders bllaterally, and in his tailbone. He was on the ground screaming. The ground around

" the area was rocky and grassy. It was November and cold so the ground was frozen.. Petitioner

- suffered ‘a fractured pelv1s fractured vertebrae fractured nght hip, fractured collarbone, and

" bilateral shoulder injuries. He had ORIF repair of his pelvis, open right-shoulder rotator cuff

- ﬁrepalr “with - acromloplasty, ‘left SLAP repair surgery with subacromtal decompresszon
debndement and revision leﬁ—shoulder SLAP repatr surgery L :

Followmg surgenes Petmoner was dlagnesed w1th a staph 1nfect10n c'entral cord

o syndrome -and cervical steriosis. -In 2009, a doctor recommended that he pursue a sedentary

© . job. Nevertheless, he was able to resume working as a supervisor but not for Routme He “used
" tobe a union. mstructor, S0 they found [him] an easier job to do.” He was still earning union

-~ scale, which was currently $46.88. No doctor ever released hlm to full work. Petmoner took
- that upon hlmself he had to eamn money. :

Petttzcner currently took Norco, maybe twice a week. That was the only medical

o ":treatment he was receiving currently. It was prescribed by his primary care physician. He also

o _--takes about 12 Aleve tablets a day. Currently, at work he has dlfﬁculty sdtmg for extended
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penods, his tallbone starts hurtmg When he walks extended dlstances his ths/pelws hurts. If
he carries anything heavy, he feels pain in his shoulders and back. He can’t lay bricks. He can
no ionger compete in martla} arts. He rated his pam as “a controlled 6/ 10 »”

o On cross exammatron by IWBF Petltroner testrﬁed he beheved he ﬁlled out the jOb

_ apphcatlon on the 26™ and began working ‘on the 27%. He did not remember the application

' ‘being a contract. ‘While it says he was an rndependent contractor ‘that was not what happened It

also provides that Petitioner was responsible for maintaining Workers’ Compensatlon insurance.

~ He really did not read or understand the agreement. He never reeewed any tramlng from
‘Routine. He rephed to an ad for gutter cleaners among other jobs. . He never met the owner of ]
Routme ' : : :

_ He was to be pard weekly, and recelved a cheek in the maﬂ for the days he worked He
was never given a W-2 There was not a set number of jobs to which he was assigned. He was

_asszgned as much as he’ could handle. Petitioner agreed that he could have chosen not to work' - |

. ‘somie Jobs “His employment was termmabie at will by Routine. - He believed he got paid by the
. }Ob between $15 and $30. He had no other jobs ‘while he worked for Routine. ‘Other than the

- supervisor, who was present and wrtnessed the ace1dent Petitioner did not notlfy anyone else
~ from Routine. He did not notlfy anyone about his doctor- appomtments He worked other _]ObS

-for Routme pI‘lOI‘ to the instant ]Ob In the other _}ObS he used hIS own 1adder i

Pet1t10ner testlﬁed he performed rnartxal arts since he was ﬁve years old He had broken '

o hxs nose and ﬁngers in’ martlal arts, but nothmg e}se

" On Cross exammatron by Mr. Ma; ermk Petltloner rerterated that they never met
prevxously The company truck was white, but he could not remember the brand. It did not have
'Routine Maintenance on it, but Carlos called it the company truck. -He came to the office in his
‘vehicle and went to the jobsite in the truck. ‘They rented ladders because they were working on
three-story buﬂdmgs If he deemed a job dangerous, he would have refused to work. T he prior
two jobs he worked for Respondent were small house gutters ‘He thought he did not receive a
W—2 because he had not rnade enough money He had no recelpts for the money he earned.

On redlreet exammatlon Pet1t10ner was agam shown the “eontract ? It hsted hrmself as
contractee (sic) and Carlos, Respondent $ ernployee as contractor. He understood that if he did
not obey orders- from Carlos, he “wouldn’t be employed.” Carlos presented him the document,
but did not explain it. He really does not understand the difference between a contractor and
~ contractee. Carlos instructed him to meet the crew at Routine’s facility. He was in a hospital
for about 2 months and at a nursing home for several months more. Nobody from Routine ever
contacted him. On the day of the accident, Routme provrded him tools and transportation and he
was paid with a Routine check.
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- Mr. Majermk was recalled by IWBF. He test1ﬁed he did not knniow how long Routlne was
1n operatlon its annual income, or the annual income in 2007. Carlos’ job was not to provide
assistance to contractors. To the best of his knowledge Routme drd not have a company truck

- and d1d not rent ladders for contractors : .

On Cross exammatron Mr., Majemlk agreed that he testrﬁed that Carlos was the ofﬁce'

manager He also agreed that he did not recall anything about November 30, 2007, that he was o |

not at the JobSIte on that date and he knew nothlng of what Carlos did at the Jobs1te
' Fmdmgs 0f Fact Medtcal Records B

- On November 30 2007 Petmoner presented to the Advocate Lutheran Generai Hosp1ta1
‘Emergency Department by ambulance after a 30-foot fall from a ladder.  He had multiple
- fractures but denied any loss of consciousness. A CT of the pelvis showed bllateral pelvic

fractures A cervrcal CT showed congemtal fusion at C2-3 and no acute abnormahty A CT of

“the brarn was normal. A thoracolumbar CT showed L5 and sacral fractures A pelvrs CT
' .showed multrple pelv1c fractures Chest x~rays were normal. X-rays of the right shoulder
showed bony fragment in the distal end of the ciavrcle widening of the AC joint, ‘and

o ﬁagmentatlon of the superior Iateral ‘portion of the acromion. It was not clear whether these -

- findings ‘were acute or from an old injury. . There ‘was also‘a Iater nght shoulder x-ray which
- showed separatron of the AC joint and lucency of the coracoid process of the scapuIa suggesting

_fracture. Lumbar x-rays showed degeneratlve retrolisthesis of L5 on S1 but no’ ev1dence of
- dlslocatlon or fracture Petrtloner was admrtted to. the hospltal St

_ _ The day aﬁer bemg adrmtted a socral worker noted that Petltloner came in wrth a

'_posrtrve toxrcology screen for cocaine and opiates. - Petitioner reported he only took cocaine
‘thrice in his life, the most recent, a couple of days prevrously, and it was supplied by a friend.
_He denied use of prescriptions medrcatrons He had been recently laid off due to reduced work

- and weather condltions

' On December 5, 2007 Dr Jimenez performed surgery msertmg two screws in the SI
Jomt anterior extemal fixation of the anterior pelvis using two half pins for unstable pelvic ring
drsruptron anterior pelvic ring drsruptlon, and unstabie posterror pelvic rmg dlsruptlon
drstrrbutlon through sacrum. :

- Petrtroner was dlscharged on December 1, 2007 to an extended care facility. Dr. Martrn
noted that Petitioner was admitted on November 1 1‘“ upon transfer from Northwest Community
Hospital due to the level of trauma care needed. He had ORIF surgery on his pelvis with Dr.
Jimenez. He was to follow up with Dr. erenez conceming his pelws and with Dr. Mardjetko

about hrs L5 fracture
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"On December 15, 2007, Petitioner retumed to the ernergency department because of
 increased redness over the fixture sites and some bilateral arm weakness/paresthesm ‘He was
- deemed to have a staph infection and was re-admitted. - Dr. Jimenez removed the pins around the -
infection on December 19%, An MRI taken of the right shoulder on December 22% showed an
* anterior nondisplaced labral tear, probably full- thlckness rotator cuff tear, and edema w1th1n the
- humeral head related to a pnor subluxatlon ' ' S : -

On December 25 2007 Dr Jlmenez noted cerwcal 1magmg showed no cord or nerve g

00t compressum ‘but an EMG showed evidence of nght carpal tunnel syndrome and an MRI Lo

- showed a rotator cuff tear of the right shoulder. Petitioner was doing well in physwal therapy -
_ Petltloner was d1scharged back to the extended care faclhty o

On J anuary 5 2008 a braln CT was normal A chest x-ray was normal Pe1v1s x-rays '
S showed bilateral superior and mferlor pubic rami fractures and 2 screws across the right SI joint.

A Tumbar MRI showed artlfacts at L5- S1 and 81 and degeneratwe dISC dlsease at. L3 4 1out no
S spmal sten031s ' : :

~ On: January 22, 2008 Petxtloner returned to Dr. Jnnenez who noted Petmoner had an
; -unstable pelvic ring disruption. - - He was treated with an anterior ring ﬁxator ~which had since

-~ been removed. “An MRI also showed a ‘complete tear of the rotator cuff supraspmatus muscle.’

R Dr. Jimenez opmed that Petitioner’s pe1v1s had sufﬁc;ently healed and they should proceed with

- surglcal repair of the nght shoulder rotator cuff and noted he would be non—we1ghtbeanng fcr 12 _

R weeks from pelv1s surgery. “On January 30, 2008, Dr. Jimenez performed nght shoulder open

acromlopiasty and open rotator cuff repalr for complete mght rotator cuff tear and 1mp1ngement

On Apnl 22 2008 Petltloner presented to Dr. Guellch aﬂer falhng 3&1/2 ﬂoors

- fracturmg his pelvis and injuring both shoulders. He had surgery on his pelvis and i ight shoulder
by Dr. Jimenez at Lutheran General. However he was terminateéd by Workers’ Compensatmn '
" 'was now on public aid, and Dr, Jimenez d1scont1nued care. Dr. Guelich noted Petitioner was in
~ physical therapy, but Dr. Guelich believed it may be difficult to restore full range of motion in
the shoulders. He indicated that Petitioner was not a surgical candidate until’ they restored full
- range of motion. He admlmstered an injection, contmued physzcal therapy, and ordered an
MRA. “The MRA of the leﬂ shoulder taken on July 3, 2008 showed rotator cuff tendonitis and
partial tear of the anterior glen01d Jabrum. On August 7, 2008, Dr. Guelich performed left-
shoulder SLAP type 2 repair, subacromial decompression, and limited debridement of the
undersurface cuff tear, for SLAP tear with impingement and partlal thlckness rotator cuff tear.
The rotator cuff tear was found mtra-operatwely

On May 6 2008, Pet;tloner presented to Dr. Metz, D.P.M. for left foot/ankle pain after
falling from a ladder in November of 2007. He had x-rays and an MRI of the ankle and told
there was nothing wrong, but his pain persisted. Dr. Metz noted that the left leg was longer than
~ the nght due to the petv1s/femur fracture He opxned that the condltlon placed greater stram on
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--the 1eﬂ leg causing his chromc paln He prov1ded a heel hﬁ adv1sed Petitioner he would use on
: "full tlme, and referred his to get custom orthotics. : . L

. L On June 20 2008 Dr Guehch noted that overali Petmoner s shouiders appeared to be
' 1mprovmg in physrcal therapy. He switched from Norco to ‘Tramadol for paln Dr. Guelich was
~concerned - about Petltloner s left shoulder which exhrbrted persrstent pam and posmb}e
mstablhty He ordered an MRA of the leﬁ shoulder SR _ '

“On August 7, 2008 Dr. Guehch performed leﬁ shoulder SLAP type 2 repalr subacromral
_decompressron ‘and " limited debridement of the undersurface cuff tear for SLAP tear w1th
: _'-nnpmgement and partlal-thwkness rotator cuff tear ' R P R

_ Dr Guehch noted Petr’aoner was domg well five weeks after left shoulder SLAP repalr -
He wanted Petitioner to continue physwai therapy He also note that Petrtloner was concerned
' _-about his pelvrs Dr. Guehoh Would take x-rays on the next visit. : = -

On Oetober 22 2008, Petltloner returned to Dr Guehch who had last seen hrm on
' September 15", At that time he was doing very well. ‘However, he sustained a reinjury when a

i ~child, werghmg more than. 150 pounds fell down some stairs. Petrtroner caught him, straining

- his-left shoulder. Dr. Guelich” dragnosed recurrent stram post SLAP repair. - He contmued o
' physreai therapy and noted that if he had per51stent pam he would order an MRA L

The new MRA was taken on November 13, 2008 It was’ compared to a study on .}'uly 3rd e

_ MRA and showed stable AC joint arthritis and a partral-thrckness tear of the supraSplnatus
" muscle. -On November 19th Petitioner reported he stopped physical therapy due to pain and was

_ takmg narcotic pain. medication occasronaliy ‘He denied any instability. - The MRA showed
- “continued partral thickness rotator cuff tear,” but the SLAP repair appeared intact. - Because of

the cornphcated nature of Petrtzoner s syrnptoms Dr Guehch wanted a second oplmon from Dr

- Petrtroner presented to Dr Nam on December 3, 2008 Dr. Narn noted that Petrtroner had
SLAP repair surgery, but then felt a pop in his, left shoulder trymg to stop a child from falling

two months prev1ously He had pers1stent and worsening pain since. He had physical therapy
and an injection since the reinjury. Dr. Nam thought it was difficult to determine whether there
was a re-tear of the labrurn from the MRA. He diagnosed partral-tlrnckness rotator cuff tear and

“possible recurrent tear of the anterior and superior labrum. After drscussmg alternatlve treatment
optrons, Petrtloner wanted only surglcal mterventlon :

On Februas:y 3, 2009 Dr. Gueheh performed revision left SLAP repair wrth removal of
suture revision of labral repair, and debridement of partial-thickness rotator cuff tear for reinjury
- and superior labral tear. A week later, Dr. Guelich noted Petitioner was doing well post SLAP
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-reparr surgery Because of the nature of the mjury, Petltroner was susceptlble to re-mjury
Therefore Dr Guehch wanted to go siow in returmng to aetlvmes and should remain in a shng

_ On February 5 2013 Petrtroner presented to Dr Newman w1th hlS son, who had suffered
o a wresthng injury. Petitioner asked that his right elbow be evaluated while he was there; it had
" ‘been a problem for some time. On exam, he had reduced elbow range of motion and was very

- tender. - X-tays showed evidence of prior trauma, ‘with spur formation at the and suspected loose

- body in the lateral joint, Dr Newman mdlcated that Petrtloner had falled conservatwe treatment
and recommended surgery SR : - :

_ On February 8 2013 Dr Newman performed nght elbow arthrotomy w1th the coracord
. process and olecranon, eprcondylectomy, and lengthemng of the cornmon extensor for synovrtrs '
tendomtrs and epxcondyhtrs ' _ : R

_ On Merch 12 2013 Petltloner reported 1o problems whrle he was on vacatlon '

* However, on return his surgical’ ‘wound was red.” Dr. Newman did not see evidence of deep
infection but noted some fibrous tlssue Wthh he debrided to remove some of the fibrous-

 ‘material. Two weeks latér, Petitioner’s infection appeared to be resolved after a round of Keflex.

o Dr Newman re debrlded ﬁbrous materral ‘On March 2%, Dr Newman noted that Petltloner was

“improving but he still debrided some fibrous material. A week later, Dr. Newman noted that
‘Petitioner was heahng mcely He had an exacerbatlon of medreal ep1condyhtrs and Dr Newman

'a dm 1mstered an m}ectron

On January 8, 2014 Dr Newman noted that Petltloner S lateral eplcondyhtrs resolved
' after the ‘injection, but he now had medial eplcondyhtrs ‘He did not recall any trauma on’ the
right side. He also had pain in the PIP joint of the left index finger. X-rays showed collapse of
cartﬂage on the ulnar aspect of the PIP joint. He thought this condition was the result of an old
- spram whrch had degenerated He admrmstered an mj eet1on in the tmgger pomt

: Dr Chudrk exarnmed Petrtloner on November 18 2018 at the request of his lawyer and
issued a report In'it he noted that his current dlagnoses were post-traumatic bilateral hip arthritis
after bilateral aeetabular fractures inferior pubrc rami - fracture, right sacral fracture ‘and nght
_transverse process 1 fracture at L5, whrch was caused by the work acc1dent nght shoulder post-
‘traumatic - arthritis :after” coracord fracture and .rotator cuff tear ' post - open repair and
acromxoplasty, caused by the work accident. - “Left shoulder SLAP tear and partial thickness
rotator cuff tear after surgical repair and subsequent surglcal repair revision, which was caused
by the work accident. Chronic right SI joint pain after unstable anterlor peivrc ring drsruptron
post SI jomt screw fixation and pe1v1e external ﬁxatlon . : .

Currently, Petltroner complained of constant LBP that radiated to the groin mostly on the
~ right worsened by sitting, or long car rides. He uses a pillow donut while driving. He noticed
hlS back pam Worsened over the past two years, especrally aﬂer he was very actrve He also
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..reported bllateral shoulder parn with work/acuVlty He was workmg, but should refram from
heavy hﬁmg/carrymg S . _

, Petrtroner reported he no longer part1c1pated in martlal arts. He recelved penodrc tmgger—

_ pomt IHjCCthi’lS for back pain and was prescribed Norco and Flexeril as needed. . Dr. Chudik
noted that Petitioner reported the accident in which he fell 28-30° and landed mostly on his back
and nght hip. Dr. Chudik then summarrzed treatment through September 11 2013 Hrs chmcal '
o exam appears to have been normal ' e _ . _

Dr Chudrk Concluded that the dragnoses crted above were - all caused by the Work :
: _aecrdent on November 30, 2007. He continued to suffer from pain assoczated with his. work- -
related condrtrons of ill- bemg I-Ie was ‘unable to work up to April 13,:2009. He will need
- ‘permanent restrictions ‘of no - heavy 11ﬁmg/carry1ng Ail medwal treatment mcurred was

: 'necessary and reasonable : - :

' In addltlon he wouid need prospectwe treatment lnciudlng but not limited to physrcai

: therapy and mjeetrons for his SI joint/hip pain and left shoulder arthritis. He would also need
prospective surgeries, including but not limited to bilateral hip. arthroplasty and left-shoulder

- arthroplasty - for his . post-traumatic - arthritis.” Dr. ‘Chudik - also itemized }ns recommended
prospectrve treatment wh1ch wouId cost an estnmated $322 585 05. o

Fmdmgs of Fact The Contract .

The “contract” executed by the partres 1dent1ﬁed by Mr. Majermk was - submrtted mto' -

evrdence It prov1des that Petitioner (contractor) was an- mdependent contractor hired by Carlos |

Hernandez (contractee). - The document specifies that no employment relationship was -
cstablished. - Petitioner represented that he had his own business.  While Carlos had the right- to
~“control the results to be accomplished” Petitioner had the right to control the “manner or means
by which the task” was to be performed. Petitioner was free to take work from other entities.
However, Petitioner was not allowed to solicit Routine’s customers while working on a job for
Routine. ' Petitioner could refuse any job offered by Carlos that he not already accepted in
' wntmg and was responsable for all taxes and to have WC insurance. Either side could terminate
the contract upon, completion of a contemplated job or after a 30-day notice. Carlos would send
Petltroner an invoice for fees and Petatloner had the obhgatron to pay the fees ' .

Concluswns of Law Employm ent Relattonshtp

The Arbltrator found that Petitioner establrshed an employrnent relatlonshlp with Routine
with regard to his work on the day of the accident. She found Petitioner’s testimony credible
about his initial encounter with Carlos when he was hired. She also found him credible about

" Carlos’ activities on the jobsite, that he oversaw Petitioner’s work, he drove Petitioner to the
_]obSIte and he supphed the 40-foot ladder She also found that Petittoner estabhshed “the nature
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of the work ” as performmg unskﬂled 1abor and not anythmg to do with his expertlse of

' ;bnekiaymg As such, Petitioner “advanced Routine Maintenance’s goal of providing such labor

to customers.”  *Finally, the Arbitrator explained that the Supreme Court has held ' that the

o partles desenptlon of the relatronshlp between them is oniy one faotor in determ1mng whether
~.an employment relatronshlp exrstec‘r ' : :

Respondents a:rgue that the Ar‘mtrator erred in ﬁndlng an employment relat1onsh1p They

S _stress the crediblhty of Mr. Majermk and base thelr arguments on the veracity of his testimony.

' IWBF stresses that Petitioner’s testimony was “ﬁloglcal and confusmg » It notes he testified that

" he was paid between $15 and $30 depending on the job, but also that he received a check for
. $600 for the 3 days worked. TWBF. described that testimony as illogical. ‘Both Routine and
IWBF. argue that Petitioner d1d not establish that Routine controlled Petitioner’s work citing the

* provisions of the contract and Mr Magermk’ testlmony Routlne also argues the Arbitrator
‘erred in her ﬁndmg about the nature of Routine’s work. " 1t stresses that Routine did not provide
_rnamtenanee services 1tse1f but rather aoted as a oondult between mdependent contractors and
E customers - : : - o :

The Comrmssmn agrees w1th the ana1y51s of the Arbltrator in ﬁnding an ernployrnent
'- -'.relatlonsmp between Petitioner and Routine Maintenance and affirms the Arbitrator on the issue

of emp}oyment relanonshrp Here, the relatlve eredrblhty of the competmg witnesses is a

fundamental issue. Generally ‘the “Axbitrator is ‘in a better position to assess ‘the relative

~gredibility of witnesses than-the ‘Commission. - The Arbitrator clearly found Petitioner more
“credible than Mr. Ma_;ermk and there does not appear’ any - compelhng reason to-disturb that
. "assessment. In addition, the’ Commission finds Petitioner’s version of the relatronshlp makes

‘more intuitive sense than ‘Mr, Majernlk’ -1t make little sense for Petitioner to set up an
~ independent company to perform professmnal activities he had never done before, His testimony

‘that he had no expertlse in gutter cleaning was not rebutted and it would appear hke}y that Carlos
: would have in some way d1reeted h1s work .

Conclusmns of Law Average Weekly Wage/Benef‘ it mte :

: The Arbitrator found an AWW of S450 a week based on Pet1t1oner s testimony that on

' average he worked four jobs per day for Respondent and was paid $15 to $30 per job. She took
the average of the two at $22.50 per job. Petitioner argues that the Arbitrator should have found
an average weekly wage (“AWW”) of §1, 000 ’oased on lns testlmony that he earned $600 for
three days of work.

There is preclous httle information upon which to assess the correct AWW. Petitioner’s
testimony about AWW was inconsistent. However, in the Request for Hearing form (“stip
sheet”), Petitioner aHeged an AWW of $600. Respondent disputed that amount, but did not
provide an alternate AWW. The Commission concludes that we should not make awards based
on an AWW larger than the one Petmoner alieged in the stxp sheet. While the Respondent
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dzsputed i’etltloner 3 aIleged AWW in n the st1p sheet it faﬂed to prov1de an alternative A WW or

- provide any means to calculate an alternative AWW. The Commission finds that Peti tioner’s

“alleged AWW of $600 in the stip sheet was not adequately rebutted Therefore, the Commlsswn

. modifies ‘the Decision of the Arbitrator to increase the AWW to $600 and to mcrease the o

' assocxated beneﬁt rates
Concluswns of Law Causatzon/ﬂledtcal

. The Arbztrator found that Pet1t1oner proved causatlon to the condmons of 111 bemg of the_ '
- pe1V1s fractures, nght-shoulder rotator cuff tear,. left-shoulder labral tear, L5 traverse fracture, -
- cand aleft ankle injury.  However, she also found that Petitioner did not sustain his burden of
" provmg that he sustained an’ m_]ury to his right ‘elbow/hand in the accident and that the reqmred '

revision left-shoulder labral repair was not caused by the accident, but rather by the intervening

:acc1dent of Petitioner trying to catch the 150- pound falhng chﬂd Therefore ‘the  Arbitrator -
denied rnedwaI for treatment of Petitioner’s right elbow, right hand and revision left-shoulder
labral repalr surgery 'I'he Arbxtrator also denied prospectzve medzcal The Arbltrator found Dr.

Chudick’s report unpersuasive. She noted that he did not review all ‘medical records, was not
aware that Petitioner had been released to work, and he opmed that Pet1t10ner would need
“bilateral hip replacements even though' chmcally he found no abnormalities. Petltloner argues '
“that: the Arbitrator erred in not awarding all medical. " He also seeks an award of prospectwe
_medical in the a.mount of $332 585 05 per the report of Dr Chud;k -

The Comnnsszon agrees WIth the Arb1trator that there is no ewdence that Petltioner s

elbowfhand condltlons were caused by his fall. ‘However, the Comrmsswn dlsagrees with the

Arbitrator on the issue of whether the need for Petitioner’s left-shoulder revision surgery was
'causaliy connected to the original work accident, There is no question: that the work-related
- accident resulted in a Ieft-shoulder injury and-an associated condition of ill-being. In ‘addition,
~ he'had left-shoulder surgery only two and a half months prior to the “failmg child incident” and
. was’ stzll bemg treated for his leﬂ shouider at the tlme ‘of that incident. In addition, the post— '
~incident MRA showed “continued partial thickness. rotator cuff tear,” ‘but the SLAP repair
, appeared intact. The Commission concludes that the later incident did not cause any structural
change in Petitioner’s left-shoulder.and that the incident did not result in an intervening accident
terminating causation. - Therefore, the Commission finds that the need for left-shoulder revision
‘surgery was still causally connected to the ongmal work acc1dent a:nd awards med1ea1

' accordmgiy

_ Howevcr the Comrmssmn agrees with the Arbitrator and concludes that awardlng the
prospectlve medICaI is inappropriate here. As with all aspects of his case, Petitioner has the
burden of provmg all elements of his claim, including a claim for prospectlve medical.” First, the
Commission agrees with the Arbitrator that Dr. Chudik’s report is unpersuasive. Second, here
Petitioner sought PPD .at arbitration and is currently seeking review on the issue of PPD before
: the Comrmsswn Such requests connote Petmoner cons1ders hlmself at MMI The assumptlon
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ﬁthat Petrtroner isat MMI and that permanency can ‘oe adjudrcated isin conﬂrct Wlth his request
o for prospectrve ‘medical. - Petitioner, apparently did not file any l9(b)/8(a) petition and at this

stage in litigation, perhaps a 19(h)/8(a) petmon may be a better avenue to pursue prospect:ve :
_-'i'rnedxcal 1f Petltroner s condltron changes e . : _ _

Concluswns of Law TTD

S .. The Arbrtrator awarded 40 weeks of TTD through September 15 2008 pnor to the leﬂ-:
oulder: revision surgery in. 2009.. Petitioner ‘argues the TTD award should be extended to -

: _,_'?__anclude_ the penod of d1sab1l1ty caused by the “re-stain” 'and revision surgery. ‘He Tequests TTD :
o of weeks: through July 1, 2009 IWBF preserved the issue of TTD, but neither it nor Routine

e argu __the issue in their bnefs Because the Comnnssron finds that the need for left—shoulder S

“revision surgery was . still causally related to the work accrdent the Comnnssmn modrﬁes the

' Arbrtrator s TTD award accordlngly

Conclusmns of Law PPD 8

= The Arbltrator awarded Petlnoner 175 weeks of PPD representmg loss of 35% of the
o MAW Prmc:lpally, the Arbitrator based her award on'the ‘excellent recovery Petitioner had from -
*his: srgmﬁcant 1n3ur1es Petitioner seeks an award of 375 Weeks of PPD representmg loss of 70% '

| -'--_iofthe MAW

The Comnnssron concludes that the Arbrtrator was correct n notmg a good recovery and

it ;_that such recovery shiould be considered in arriving at an appropriate PPD award. . In addition,

~Petitioner testified: that he still earned ‘the same union scale wage that he would of absent the

i f_;mjunes Nevertheless the Commission has’ rnodlﬁed the Decision of the Arbrtrator and found
-+ that the: need for: leﬂ—shoulder revision surgery was still causally connected to the original work

aecxdent Therefore, the Comnnssron concludes that Petitioner is entltled to add1t1onal PPD

7 benefits for ‘his” second leﬂ-surgery surgery “and an associated increase in permanent partial
o d1sab1hty Therefore, the Commission modifies the Arbitrator’ s PPD award from loss of 35% of

' -the person«as-a—whole to loss of 45% of the person—as—a-whole
Concluswns of Law Penalttes & Fees

'_ : The Arbrtrator denred Petrtroner s request for penaltres and fees noting that there was no
-wntten demand for payment made. Petitioner argues the Arbitrator erred in not awarding
fpenaltres & fees. and seeks 19(k) penaltres of $162,263.55, 19(1) penaltxes of $10,000, and 16 fees
- of $34,452.71. The Commission agrees with the Arbitrator and finds that there were legitimate

issues for ad;adrcatlon Therefore, the Commission finds Respondents actions were not arbitrary
“or-capricious in denying benefits. Therefore the Commrssron afﬁnns the Arbltrator $ demal of
penaltles and fees o : :



10 wc 39469

o 20IWCC6sl

""Page 13

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED BY THE COMMISSIO\I that Respondent shall pay to |

RO the Petltloner the’ sum ‘of $400 per week fora penod of 78 weeks that ’oemg the perlod of EURE -
' _'-;-:-temporary totaI 1ncapac;ty for work under §8(b) : RIS i Ll

T I8 FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent pay 1o for_""-_'_ -

L .medxcal expenses under §8(a) of the Act for all medical treatment 1ncurred to date other than that f e
'_;‘_-‘-'mcurred to treat hls rrght elbow or Iaceratron of hlS thumb ' L ST R

 IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE ‘COMMISSION that Petitioner request for
:_._'prospectlve medtcal treatment and for the nnposmon of penalttes and fees is demed S

s FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent pay Petltxoner?.-'_."-.'._-'_--':- el
S 'the sum of $360 per week for a penod of 225 weeks because the m}unes sustamed resulted in the i
s _'45% loss of use of the person—as a—whole B S R i S

e IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that the Illmms State Treasurer:-. il
L -.as ex~off cio eustodtan of the Injured Workers Beneﬁt Fund was named as a co-Respondent m' o
.- this matter. The Treasurer was represented by the Iihnms Attorney General “This award is

o '_'-hereby entered agaxnst the Fund to the extent’ perm1tted ang allowed under. §4(d) of the Act in D

~the ‘event of the failure of Respondenthmpioyer to pay the benefits due and owing the - 3:

"'jPetttloner Respondent-Emponer shall’ reimburse the Injured Workers' Beneﬁt Fund for any .

S " .'-:'-'_compensatlon obligations of Respondent-Ernployer that are pald to the Petlttoner from the L : S
-'*.}-“;Injured ’Workers BeneﬁtFund BRI SRR TR PV L :

RES _ IT IS FURTHER ORDERBD BY T HE COMMISSION that Respondent pay to Petlttoner' L
1nterest under §19(n) of the Act 1f any - . Lo

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent shalI have credlt ..

5 : for all amounts patd 1f any, t to or on behalf of Pettttoner on aceount of Sald acmdental m]ury

Bond for the removal of thrs cause to the Czrcutt Court by Respondent is hereby ﬁxed at o

.'the sum of $75 000 00." The party commencing the proceedmgs for review in the Cli‘Clllt Court

' shall ﬁle w1th the Comrmssmn a Nottce of Intent to F1le for Rev1ew in Ctrcutt Court

IR B Barbafa'_N. ?Iores _'
. DLS/dw AR

0-9/17/20
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- ORDER OF RECALL UNDER SECTION 19(F)

The Commlssmn on Monon of Petltfoner recalls the Dec1s1on and Opmmn on Rev1ew

E g of the Ilhnols Workcrs Compensatton Comrm551on dated October 14 2020 pursuant to’.

i Section 19(f) of the Act due to 2 clencal error
e I'I' IS THEREFORE ORDERED BY T HE CO’V[MISSION that the Dec1s1on and :
Opimon on Revlew dated October 14 2020 is hereb} recaﬂcd and a Corrccted Dec1510n and -

_ Opimon on Rev1ew is hereby 155ued szmuitaneously

3 bat;;dl‘ NV 1 g zuzu

S 11/19/2020 | '_ . Commissioner Stephen Mathis

- S_M_/msb .
o
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STATE OF ILLINOIS R ) DAfﬁrm and adopt (o changes)
) SS. DAfﬁrmwzthehmges

. [:] Injured Workers Beneﬁt Fund (§4(d))
_ D Rate Ad_;ustment Pund (§8(g)) ' |

[ ] second Injury Fund ($5()18)

COUNTY OF COOK ) :.' DReverse
S O S _:DPTD/Fataldemed'

L gModify M @ Nonc of the above

BEF ORE THE ILLINOIS WORKERS’ COMPENSATION COMMISSION 2

o .'JULIET OBODOAKOR

PetltIOIIGI‘, .Z
VS o NO: 11 WC 44064
B LS D DT RS © 20IWCC0607
ik 'JACKSON PARK HOSPITAL
ReSpondent _ .

DECISION AND OPINION ON REVIEW

Tlme}y Pet1t1on for Rev1ew havmg been ﬁled by the Pet1t1oner herem and notlce ngen to

' _'all partles, the Commission; after. considering the issues of causal connection, medical expenses, -

Itemporary total disability, permanent partial disability, and pena1t1es and fees, and: ‘being advised .

. of the facts and law, modifies the Decision of the Arbitrator as stated below and otherwise
S afﬁrms and adopts the Dec1s;0n ef the Arb1trator whlch is attached hereto and made a pa.ﬂ: _

o The Commlssmn modlﬁes the Dems;on of the Arb1trator and ﬁnds that Petlttoner _

) aehleved maximum medlcal zmprovement on Mareh 20,2014. On March 20, 2014 Petltloner :

: 'presented to her treatlng physwlan Dr. Rinella in follow-up Petitioner was seen by Dr. Rmella s

. physician’s assistant. The clinical note reﬂects that imaging studies were reviewed, anda

. physical. examination was performed. The examiner also referenced the Functional Capacity
iEvaluatlon performed on January 28, 2014 which was invalid. The FCE report states, “The

results’ represerit a mampulated effort by the client. Therefore, the levels identified by the client

represent less than their true safe capabthty level.”” No additional work restrtctzons were deemed

~ appropriate by Dr. Rinelli secondary to Pet1t1oner s chmcal ﬁndmgs and she was to return to

' chmc on an as needed basis. ' :

..On December 22 2014 Petlttoner underwent a lumbar MRL, Dr Ghanayem,
'Respondent s Sectton 12 examlner saw. Petltloner on Apnl 2 2015. He rev1ewed the lumbar MRI
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and 1nterpreted the scan as normal w1th no ewdence of neurologic compressxon The
Commission notes and corrects a scrivener’s error in Dr. Ghanayem’s report which: rrnstakenly '
-_1dent1ﬁes the date of the lumbar MRI as havmg been performed in “February 0of 2014” rather
‘than the correct date of December 22,2014, Addlthl’lﬂ]ly, Dr. Ghanayem reviewed the invalid

o 'FCE report of Ianuary 2014, and perforrned a physical examination. Dr. Ghanayem found

" Petitioner to be at maximum medical improvement and capable of returmng to regu]ar duty He
- stated the i 1mpressxon that Petltloner “has sub;ectwe complamts of neck and back pam that are

B not substannated objectlvely

The Comm1531on ﬁnds based upon the foregoxng ana1y31s that Petmoner achleved ST

e '.I_'-max1mum medical improvement on March 20, 2014 and modifies the Ar‘oltrator s award of
: _'temporary total dlsablhty beneﬁts and medacal beneﬁts accordmgiy

: IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent pay to |
_ Petltzoner the sum of $757.20 per’ “week for a period of 139 weeks, ‘commencing July: 22, 2011 -
DR through March 20 2014 that belng the perlod of temporary total 1ncapa01ty for work under §8(b)
: '3of the Act _ -

o o IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent pay to Petltloner_ o
. ‘the. sum of $681.46 per: week for a period 0f 28.5 weeks as provzded in §8(e)9 of the Act, for -

- the reason that the injuries sustained caused the 15% loss of the use of the hand, and $681.46 per i
" week fora penod of 25 weeks ‘as prov1ded in SGCIIOﬂ 8(d)2 for the reason that the 1njurxes '

S sustalned caused 5% Ioss of use of the person as a whole

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY TI—IE COMMISSION that Respondent pay to Petltloner

i tnedlcal bllls mcurred on and pnor fo. March 20, 2014, as well as the referenced x- ray and -
= phy51ca1 therapy on Petltloner s right hand, as ordered by the Cormmsswn, if not already patd ‘as

well as any medioal services related to Petitioner’s carpal tunnel and de Quervaln $ syndrome for
: _medlcal expenses under Secnons 8(a) and 8. 2 of the Act : -

. IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent pay to Petltloner '_
S _mterest under Sect1on 19(n) of the Act 1f any -

_ IT IS F URTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that Respondent shall have cred1t
for all amounts pa1d 1f any, to or on beha]f of Petxtloner on account of sald accldentaI 1n3ury

- IT IS FURTHER ORDERED BY THE COMMISSION that no penaltles or attorney 8
: fees are awarded _ _
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. Bond for the removaI of thls cause to the Clrcult Court by Respondent is hereby ﬁxed at '

: the sum of $75, 000. 00. The party commencing the proceedmgs for review in the Circuit Court
~shall ﬁie w1th the Commlssmn a Not1ce of Intent to File for Rev1ew in CII‘CUIt Court B

g 44
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STATE OF ILLINOTS ) C C 0 6 0 7 [ mmjured Workers® Benefit Fund (§4(d))
LR % ' ' [ Rate Adjustment Fund (§8(2)) -
“cowntvorCook T [ Iswcondinjury Fund 83)18)

: S . : : .None of the above

ILLINOIS WORKERS’ COMPENSATION COMMISSION

ARBITRATION DECISION
Juliet Obodoakor o Case# 11 WC 44064
EmployeefPetiti_oner- ; :
v _ Consohdated cases: _
Jackson Park Hosp tal : '
EmployerlRespondent

AnAppI:catzon Jor Ad]ust‘ment of Clazm was ﬁled in this matter and a Notice of Hearmg was mailed to each
party. The matter was heard by the Honorable Thomas L. Ciecko, Arbitrator of the Commission, in the city
of Chicago on March 28, 2019. After reviewing all of the evidence presented, the Arbitrator hereby makes
ﬁndmgs on the diSputed issues checked below, and attaches those ﬁndmgs to this document

DISPUTED ISSUES

- Was Respondent operatmg under and subject to the 111111013 Workers Compensatzon or Oceupational
Diseases Act?. -

D Was there an employee-empioyer relationship?

U] Did an accident occur that arose out of and in the course of Petitioner's employment by Respondent‘7
D What was the date of the accident?

[] Was tlmeiy notlee of the accident given to Respondent‘7 -

12 Is Petmoner s current cond1t10n of ill-being causally related to the 1njury‘?

D What were Petmoner s eannngs‘7

E What was Petmoner s age at the time of the accident?

(] What was Petmoner s mmtal status at the time of the accident?

X Were the medical services that were provided to Petitioner reasonable and necessary? Has Respondent
pald all appropnate charges for all reasonable and necessary medical services?

K . What temporary benefits are in dlspute’?
L

1Hﬁmawmuow'e

[]1TPD - [[] Maintenance X TTD
i . What is the nature and extent of the injury? _
M. P . Sheuld penaltles or fees be imposed upon Respondent?
N []1s Respondent due any credit?
o. [] Other '

ICArEDec 2/10 100 W. Randolph Street #8-200 Chicago, IL 60601 3 12/814-6611  Toll-free 866/352-3033  Web site: www.iwee.il.gov
- Downstate offices: Collinsville 618/346-3450  Peoria 309%/671-3019 Rockford 815/987-7292  Springfield 217/785-7084



On July 21 201 1, Respondent was operatmg under and subject to the provxsmns of the Act
On thls date, an employee~employer relat10nsh1p dld eXISt between Petltioner and Respondent
On this date Petltloner dld sustam an accldent that arose out of and in the course of employment

Tunely notlce of th}s acc:dent was given to Respondent

Petitzoner 5 current condltlon of 11E-bemg, a carpal tunnel injury, and de Quewwww
4 det E _ L

In the year precedmg the 1n_]ury, Petmoner earned $59 061 60 the average weekly wage was $1 1 35 80
On the date of acmdent Petitxoner was 40 years of age, smgle wnh 3 dependent children. h
Pennoner has recelved all reasonable and necessary medical serv1ces o " '

Respondent kas paad all appropriate charges for all reasonable and necessary medlcal serv1ces

Respondent shali be gwen a credit of $83, 074. 56 for TTD, $0 for TPD, $0 for mamtenance, and $4770 36 as
an advance for permanent partlal dlsabmty benef‘ ts, for a total credit of $87, 844 92.

Respondent is entltled toa credlt of $0 under Sectlon 80) of the Act.

ORDER . _
Methcal benefits

Respondent shall pay medical bills 1ncurred on and prlor fo August 28, 2013 as well as the referenced x-ray. and
physical therapy on Petitioner’s right hand, as ordered by the Comrmsswn if not already paid as well as any
medlcal serwces reiated to Petitioner’s carpal tunnel and de Quervain’s syndrome _

"/—w--m- N S
- -

Temporary total disability

Respondent sﬁail pay' Petitioner temporafy total disability benefits of $757.20 per'week commencing July 22,
ZMrough February 14, 2014 . ”

T N o T

Perman.ent partiat disebility o |
Respondent shall pay Petztloner pe ent-partiat-disability benefits of: $681.48 per week for 28.5 weeks
because the injuri o ‘ loss ofa hand' d $681.48 per week for 25 weeks because injuries
sustained causeq 5% loss of a man as By

Penalties

No penalties or attorneys’ fees are awarded.

RULES REGARDING APPEALS UNLESS a party files a Petition for Review within 30 days after receipt of this
decision, and perfects a review in accordance with the Act and Rules, then this decision shall be entered as the

decision of the Commission.

STATEMENT OF INTEREST RATE If the Commission reviews this award, interest at the rate set forth on the Notice
of Decision of Arbitrator shall accrue from the date listed below to the day before the date of payment;
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however, if an employee's appeal results in either no change or a decrease in this award, interest shall not

4@/% P

/S{gnaturc of Arbitrator Date

1CAMDe: p.2 . CAUG 27 2019
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Juhet Obodoakor v. Jackson Park Hospxtai No. 11 WC 44064

s

Preface

The parttes proceeded to heanng March 28 2019 ona Request for Hearmg mdrcatmg the
foilowmg dasputed issues: whether Petitioner’s current condition of ill-being is causally
connected to an accidental injury on July 21, 2011 whether Respondent is liable for unpald
medical bills; whether Petitionier is entitled to temporary total disability from July 22,2011,
through November 29, 201 8 what is the nature and extent of the injury; and whether Petrttoner
is entitled to penalttes and attorney’s fees. Juliet Obodoakor v. Jackson Park Hospital, No. 1 1
WC 44064 Transcript Proceedmgs on Arbitration at 5; Arbitrator’s Exhibit 1. The: hearmg was
recessed and resumed four times concermng the return of subpoenaed records, w1th proofs closed
May 30, 2019 The resumed dates of Apnl 25 2019 May 23 2019 and May 30 2019 were not
transcrtbed ' : : :

EE ThlS matter was prewousiy heard asa Sectlon 19(b) Petttton, and on Petltlon for Revrew
of an Arbitration Decision on the 19(b) Petition, the Commission found Petitioner entitled to -
temporary total dlsabthty at the sum of $757.21 per week for 109 6/7 weeks from July 22, 201 1,
through August 28,2013, Tt further found Respondent responsrble to pay for medical services
incurred from Juiy 21, 201 1,t0 August 28; 2013. It further ordered Respondent authonze and
pay for an x-Tay of the iumbar spine and physrcal therapy on Petitioner’s right hand. The
Comrmssron denied Pet1t1oner 5 clalms for penaltles and attorney s fees Petttioner s Exhlblt 1.

Fmdmgs of Fact .:' .

The facts pnor to thrs hearmg, are taken and condensed from the deelslon of the
COmImSSlOI‘l Petitioner was a registered nurse workmg at Respondent when, on July 21,2011,
she was kicked. bya patlent in the chest causing her to fall backwards on the floor. Petitioner
sustamed a-carpal tunnel injury that failed conservative treatment. Carpal tunnel release surgery
on the right hand was petformed May 19, 2012, and Petitioner performed post-operative physical
therapy. During that therapy, symptoms of de Quervain’s syndrome manifested in Petitioner, as
a complication of physxcal therapy. Additional surgery to relieve the de Quervam S syndrome
was performed May 14, 2013 Petltxoner s Exhlblt |

Petttloner testtﬁed she has severe patn in her back, but does not remenmber when it started
to get worse. She did not recall all her doctors. Her testzmony was marked by histrionic
outbursts, and seemed exaggerated She showed selective memory.” She did not remember
certain medtcal treatment Obodoakor at 16 20 27 45, 34,39, 42 '

Petitioner submrtted to an 1ndependent medtcal exammatron Aprrl 2, 2015 by Dr
Alexander Ghanayem, Director of the Division of Spine Surgery at Loyola University Medical
Center. Petitioner complained of neck pain; pain and numbness of both thumbs; low lumbar
back pain; and numbness in her foot. Dr. Ghanayem reviewed a lumbar MRI of Petitioner done
in February 2014, and found it normal with nothing pathological. He found facet joint
thickening consistent with age. He noted, in a cervical MRIL, a disc herniation at C4-5. Dr.
Ghanayem believed that if the disc herniation was from the accident, it would have been
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symptomatic within a week or so. Petmoglg no neurologlcal finding of a disc herniation.
Ghanayem found Petitioner’s subjective complaints of back pam not substantiated by objective
diagnostic testing. He said Petitioner had multiple nonorganic physical examination findings
* consistent with symptom magmﬁcatlon Dr. Ghanayem found that Petitioner’s subjective
complaints of neck and back pain were not objectively substantiated. Ghanayem noted Petitioner
had an FCE in January 2014 that was invalid. That functional assessment done January 28,
2014, at ATI identified it as an invalid representation of the present physical capabilities of
Petitioner. It noted “the results represent a manipulated effort by [Petitloner} » The observations
contained over 20 instances where Petitioner terminated testing saying some variation of “I'm
having pain in my lower back.” Dr. Ghanayem found Petitioner at MMI and noted she should be
back to work regular duty with no need of further medical care. Respondent’s Exhibit 6;
Petitioner’s Exhibit 3.

Petitioner testified she saw a doctor at the request of her attomeys Dr. Ross. Dr.
Matthew Ross testified via evidence deposition. He said he saw Petitioner as a second opinion
for legal purposes, March 2, 2018. That was nearly seven years after Petitioner was kicked in the
chest by a patient. He did not think Petitioner sustained significant disc injury as a result of the
accident. He said Petitioner was on a number of mind-altering drugs and could not work as a
nurse on the with the cocktail of drugs she was on. He testified Petitioner dlsplayed situational
depression and her examination was marked by depressed affect, ﬁequent crying, anger and
overall depression. He believed a significant portion of Petitioner’s pain is facet mediated.
Obodoakor at 21; Petitioner’s Exhibit 20 at 7, 9-10, 14, 15, 19.

Dr. Ross admitted he was hired by Petitioner’s attorneys and saw Petitioner only once.
He reviewed the IME report of Dr. Ghanayem, but not the opinions. He testified Ghanayem is a
capable, respected orthopedic spine surgeon. He admitted he did not see the study or report of
Petitioner’s February 2014 MRI. Ross said he would expect symptoms of a lumbar or cervical
spine injury to resolve in days. He thought Petitioner’s psychological distress is playing a tole in
her physical distress. Ross testified the degree of disruption to Petitioner’s life and disability is
much greater than would be seen with even true facet mediated pain. Petmoner s Exhibit 20 at
25-26,27, 28, 29-30, 40, 42.

Conelusions of Law

Disputed issue F is, is Petitioner’s current condition of ill-being causally related to the
injury of July 21, 2011. An injured employee bears the burden of proof to establish the elements
of her right to compensation, including the existence of a causal connection between her
condition of ill-being and her employment. - Navistar International Transportatlon Cogporation V.
Industrial Commission (Diaz), 315 Ill. App. 3d 1197, 1202-1205 (2002). A claimant must prove
that some act or phase of her employment was a causative factor in the ensuing injury. Whether |
a causal connection exists is a question of fact. Vogel v, Illinois Worker’s Compensation

Commission, 354 Ill. App. 3d 780, 786 (2005).

I found, as a conclusion of law, Petitioner’s current condition of ill-being, that of a carpal
tunne! injury and de Quervain’s syndrome, and lumbar strain, causally related to being kicked in
the chest by a patient on July 21, 2011. Those conditions resolved long ago. In support of this, I



rely on the opmlons of Dr. Lim in 2011 and 2012 Dr Ghanayem in 2015 Respondent’ s Exhlblt
2; Respondent’s Exhlblt 3; Respondent’s Exlnblt 6 T _ ST :

There is, ioormng over Petztloner s clann a substant1a1 amount of exaggeratlon, :
embellishment, and lack of objective support for her claims. Having observed her perfomlance '
at this hearing, T find her less than a‘credible witness. Doctors have observed symptom
magnification. and overreactlon to pain symptoms mere months after the accident.’ Petitioner’s -
functional assessment was found invalid, as she attempted to manipulate the results. Even a
doctor hired by Petmoner who ‘saw her nearly seven years after the accident thought Petitioner’s
claimed disability was much greater than should be seen. Respondent’s Exhibit 2; Respondent’ _
Exhﬁ)xt 3 Petttloner s Exhlblt 3 Petmoner s Ex}nblt 20 at 42; Respondent S Exhtbxt 6

stputed issue J is’ whether Respondent is: habie for certam unpald medtcal bllls the list
of Wthh is attached to the Request for Hearing. An emp}oyer shall pay accordingtoa fee .
schedule or negotxated date, all necessary first aid, medical services, and hospital services -
incurred, reasonably requlred to cure or reheve from the effects of an acmdental mjury 820
ILCS305/8a : - : : : SREY L TR

I ﬁnd asa conclusmn of law as set forth by the Commlssmn Respondent shall pay
medical bills incurred on and prior to August 28,2013, as well as the referenced x-ray and
physical therapy on Petitioner’s ri ight hand. T further find, consistent with the findings on causal

- connection, that medical services related to Petitioner’ s carpal tunnel and de Quervam s

# Syndrome are to be paid by Respondent Any treatment of Petitioner’ s lumbar strain, except for _

- the x-ray prev1ously awarded, 1s riot the: responsﬂblhty of Respondent. Petitioner does not offer a |

~ coherent explanatlon for Respondent’s responsibility for payment of the list of bills. The sheer '
number of dtsparate prov1ders without correlation to a spectﬁc condttlon of 1ll-be1ng, works
against 1mposmg hablhty on Respondent : - :

Dlsputed issue K is, is Petzhoner entltled to a period of temporary total dlsablhty She
certainly is through August 28, 2013, Petitioner’s Exhibit 1. To be entitled to a temporary total -
disability award under the Act, an 1n3ured worker must prove not only she did not work, but was
unable to work. Ingalls Memonal Hospital v. Industrial Commission, 241 Til. App. 3d 710
(1993). Here the issue comes down to how long past August 28, 2013, should the award extend.
On February 14, 2014, Petitioner’s doctor released her to work as to her right hand. Petitioner’s
Exhibit 5. An MRI of her back done on that date was normal. Respondent S Exlublt 6.

I ﬁnd asa conclusmn of law, Petmoner is entlt}ed to a period of temporary total
disability benefits from July 22, 2011, to February 14, 2014, at $757.20 per week. The parties
have sttpulated Respondent has paid $83 074.56 in such beneﬁts

Disputed issue L is, what is the nature and extent of the injury of July 21, 2011. That
date of injury predates the establishment criteria in 820 ILCS 305/8.1b, and so disability need not
be established using those criteria.

Petitioner sustained injuries to her right hand and a subsequent condition in that hand
during physical therapy. I find the level of permanent partial disability for that hand at 15%
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(28.5 weeks) at $681.48 per week. She recovered from these injuries to the extent she was
seeking employment as a Case Manager, a Clinical Manager, Dialysis Nurse, Registered Nurse,
and Travel Nurse in 2017. Petitioner’s Exhibit 19. She secured employment as a Supervisor in a
nursing home in 2017, Obodoakor at 29; Petitioner’s Exhibit 31. -

Petitioner also sustained a lumbar strain. That has iong siﬁce resolved. I find the level of
permanent partial disability at 5% (25 weeks) man as a whole at $681.48 per week.

The parties have stipulated Respondent has péid an advance of such benefits of
$4,770.36.

Disputed issue M is, should penalties or fees be imposed upon Respondent. The
Commission previously denied Petitioner’s claim for penalties and attorney’s fees. Penalties are
discretionary, rather than mandatory. I note Respondent has paid qver $150,000 in benefits ina
claim where an injury occurred eight years ago. I also note Petitioner’s lack of credibility and
the repeated recognition of doctors and therapists of Petitioner’s attempted manipulation of
findings and symptom magnification. I find this is not a case that, by any stretch of the
imagination, warrants the imposition of penalties or fees.

Y5

Arbitrator ' . Date
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